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DE D I C AT E D
OUR

TO

E M PLOY E ES

This year’s annual report, titled “The Faces of Rollins,”
is dedicated to you. It features the face that we
present to our customers, associates and the public,
day after day. Your expertise, your talents and your
shared commitment to exceptional service are the
bedrock on which our business is built. We salute
your exceptional efforts in 2007, and thank you for
your contribution to Rollins’ and Orkin’s continued
growth and success.
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A N N U A L

R E P O R T

Rollins, Inc. is a premier North American consumer and commercial services company. Through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Orkin, Inc., Western Pest Services and The Industrial Fumigant Company, the
Company provides essential pest control services and protection against termite damage, rodents and insects to
approximately 1.7 million customers in the United States, Canada, Mexico, Central America, the Caribbean, the
Middle East and Asia from over 400 locations. You can learn more about our subsidiaries by visiting our Web
sites at www.orkin.com, www.westernpest.com, www.indfumco.com and www.rollins.com. You can also find
this and other news releases at www.rollins.com by accessing the news releases button.
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2007 HIGHLIGHTS
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
All earnings per share and dividends per share have been restated for the 2007, 2005 and 2003 three-for-two
stock splits effective December 10, 2007, March 10, 2005 and March 10, 2003 respectively.

(in thousands except per share data)

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

$894,920

$858,878

$802,417

$750,884

$677,013

O P E R AT I O N S S U M M A R Y

Revenues
Net Income

64,731

57,809

52,773

52,055

35,761

Earnings Per Share—Basic:
Net Income

0.65

0.57

0.52

0.51

0.35

Earnings Per Share—Diluted:
Net Income

0.64

0.56

0.51

0.49

0.34

Dividends per Share

0.20

0.17

0.13

0.11

0.09

$475,228

$453,175

$438,420

$418,780

$349,904

Noncurrent Capital Lease Obligations

601

124

560

—

—

Long-Term Debt

775

660

456

1,700

1,734

Stockholders’ Equity

233,553

211,459

176,951

167,549

138,774

Shares Outstanding at Year-End

100,636

101,837

102,017

102,756

101,603

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets
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R. Randall Rollins
Chairman of the Board

TO

OUR

S H A R E H O L D E R S

As a premier service provider, Rollins’ success
has been built one satisfied customer at a time.
Our people, their knowledge and the relationships they establish with their customers are
our most important and valuable assets. The
theme of this year’s annual report, “The Faces
of Rollins,” was chosen to acknowledge and
celebrate their accomplishments and their
crucial role in fostering the culture that drives
our success.
Despite a challenging business climate in
2007, Rollins and its businesses enjoyed a
highly successful year, reporting our 10th
consecutive year of revenue and profit improvement. Record-setting drought conditions in
much of the United States adversely impacted
pest reproduction and reduced market
demand, particularly in the Residential sector.
Nonetheless, Rollins generated revenue of

pest-control needs, such as food processing
and healthcare facilities. As a result of this
execution, we have significantly increased the
average contract value per new Commercial
client, as well as the average monthly sales of
our Commercial salespeople.
Rollins has a proven record of quality in
termite treatments, resulting in a significant
reduction in termite damage claims and related
expenses. Less than one-half of 1 percent of
our customers have termite damage claims, and
almost 100 percent of those are resolved to the
customer’s satisfaction. The number of termite
claims was down over 25 percent in 2007,
thanks to our relentless national quality-control
efforts and a commitment to rapid response to
customer issues.
We undertook several key growth projects
in 2007, including choosing a new advertising
agency, The Richards Group, to help us better
promote our highly regarded brand. We

$894.9 million in 2007, up from $858.9 million
in 2006, a 4.2 percent increase. For the year, our
earnings rose 12.0 percent to $64.7 million,
compared to $57.8 million in 2006.
Through its subsidiaries, Rollins continued to
grow the Commercial segment of our business,
which is less sensitive to weather, and enjoys
superior customer retention. Commercial sales
increased over 13 percent during 2007, and now
represent 46 percent of our total pest control
business, almost twice the percentage in 1990.
Our strategic emphasis on Commercial pest
control has been successful with the expansion
of our sales force and the 2005 acquisition of
Industrial Fumigant Company, both of which
contributed significantly to our year. We added
to our momentum in 2007 by further restructuring our Commercial sales organization,
and targeting industries with more critical

$ 6 4 , 731

$894,920
$ 8 58 , 878
$ 802 , 417
$ 750 , 8 8 4

$57, 8 09
$ 52 , 773
$ 52 , 055

$ 67 7, 013

$35 , 761

O7

O6

O5

NET INCOME

O4

O3

(IN MILLIONS)

O7

O6

O5

REVENUES

O4

O3

(IN MILLIONS)
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Gary W. Rollins
CEO, President and
Chief Operating Officer

increased our branch footprint by opening
15 new North American offices; and expanded
globally through the addition of Orkin
franchises in the United Arab Emirates,
South Korea, the Dominican Republic
and Honduras.
Also this past year, we created a new
Women’s Initiative to continue our ongoing
efforts to increase the recruiting, hiring and
retaining of female employees. After holding
our inaugural Women’s Leadership Conferences
in Atlanta, we established a Women’s Resource
Group of talented, forward-thinking women
leaders from throughout the Company to
maintain this focus and help direct this
important endeavor. We are currently improving our recruiting materials, searching for
suitable candidates at job fairs and targeting
particular high-potential groups, such as
military women who are re-entering the
civilian workforce.

We believe the consumers’ growing environmental sensitivity will have an impact on our
business in the years ahead. We recently added
our first “all-green” restaurant client, and we will
be increasing our customer communications
regarding our environmental stewardship
efforts. Rollins will continue to explore new
non-pesticide technologies, expanding the
Company’s botanical-based product offerings,
while incorporating them into our integrated
pest management (IPM) practices. Our highly
trained field service force is well-positioned to
meet the challenge of this emerging green
market demand.
Our Company stock performance also was
very positive in 2007. Shareholders benefited
from our results, seeing Rollins’ stock price
rise over 30 percent from a closing price of
$14.74 at year-end 2006 to $19.20 at the close
of 2007. We provided a total return, including
dividends, on investor’s shares of 31.6 percent.

In the third quarter, the board of directors
approved a three-for-two stock split. In the first
quarter, the board of directors increased the
quarterly dividend to 71⁄2 cents per share, marking the sixth consecutive year that the dividend
has been increased by at least 20 percent.
We ended the year with solid cash reserves
of $71.3 million, leaving us well-positioned
to capitalize on strategic and acquisition
opportunities as they become available.
We are proud of these 2007 achievements,
as we are of increasing co-worker retention
and customer retention. Our investments in
training and technology will be key factors
in our ability to continue our retention
improvement, and in the pages that follow, we
will detail some of our initiatives to enhance
our world-class training while adapting new
pest control technology.
The “face of Rollins” is changing – and for
the better.

TOTAL REVENUES BY SERVIC E LINE

T E R M I T E

COMMERCIAL

44.0%

RESIDENTIAL

36.8%

TERMITE

18.4%

C O M M E R C I A L
PEST C O N T R OL

R E S I D E N T I A L
PEST C O N TRO L

OTHER
TOTAL PEST CONTROL

.8%
80.8%

ROLLINS 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

5

0260r3:Layout 1

3/18/08

5:11 PM

Page 4

T E C H N O L O G Y

“In today’s fast-paced world, reliable scheduling is
critical to meeting our customers’ needs. Our new
routing and scheduling system will result in more time
spent with customers and less time spent driving.”

Rollins,

through its corporate support
departments and subsidiaries, has a well-earned
reputation as the pest control industry’s
technology leader, a role we maintained in
2007 by pushing ahead on several new fronts.
The Internet has rapidly transformed the way
consumers seek pest services and information,
and Rollins has moved aggressively to capitalize
on this medium. In 2006, we made a significant
investment in Web-based marketing with the
purchase of more than 160,000 different word
combinations to help customers find Orkin,
Western Pest Services, PCO and Industrial
Fumigant Company when searching for pest
and termite control information.
Last year, we further increased our Web
marketing budget, targeting localized searches,
to help us better reach potential customers
seeking information relevant to their particular
geographical area. As we gain more experience,
we are refining our online strategies to focus
on lead quality over quantity – aiming to
convert a higher percentage of leads into new
customers. These efforts are now paying off,
as Internet leads and sales are outpacing
those from traditional advertising channels,
a trend that we expect will grow for some
time to come.
Another major technology investment in
2007 was the ongoing development of ORION,
our proprietary routing and scheduling
management system designed to enhance
customer retention by better meeting our
customers’ expectations. ORION will help us
generate optimal travel routes, better enabling
same-day service scheduling and ensuring that
our customers’ preferences and availability
requirements are met consistently.
Service and sales employees also will benefit

6
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from ORION. Provided with the most efficient
service routes, technicians will experience
less windshield time, be able to spend more
time with their customers and improve their
earnings. A system test is currently underway,
and field trials will begin mid-year, with a rollout planned to begin in late 2008.
In 2007, we also expanded the use of
PowerTrak, Orkin’s hand-held computer technology that enables our technicians to capture
and process customer data at the time of service.
PowerTrak helps technicians track pest activity
and potential pest problems for subsequent
follow up. Our National Account customers
are very interested in feedback regarding
housekeeping and sanitation data at specific
locations, because it allows them to assist in
support of our services. Customer data on all
our Gold Medal Accounts (high-end customers)
became available via PowerTrak in late 2007,
and we will utilize PowerTrak to serve more of
our large, multi-location customers in the
coming year.
We expanded our use of our global positioning software (GPS) throughout the fleet, which
provides 24/7 monitoring of speed, seat-belt
usage, location, drive time and service time.
Among other things, this data-collection tool
helps us identify unsafe drivers and their
practices before they have a costly accident. GPS
has been a huge factor in reducing our accidents
and forced turnover.
We have begun testing Kronos, a personnelrelated software system that will be used to
collect data on employee work hours, while
reducing manual payroll calculations to
increase accuracy and reporting efficiency.
The Kronos system is expected to be installed
companywide in 2008.
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“Investing in our employees is investing in our success.
Making sure their learning is continuous enables them to
grow professionally, while contributing to the Company’s
overall achievements.”
Rollins

“coaching culture” and performhas long been commitance-based learning environment
ted to investing in its most important
that will help our employees reach
asset – its people – and 2007 was no
the next level and develop to their
exception. For the sixth straight year,
highest potential.
Training magazine recognized Orkin
Investing in developing our
in its prestigious Top 125 list. The
employees and recognizing their
magazine, the training industry’s
accomplishments are critical to
premiere publication, annually
our success as a service company.
reviews and selects organizations that
Our field people who provide the
excel at human capital development,
administration, sales and service to
based on their training practices,
our customers are critical to our
evaluation methods and outstanding
success. Making sure we prepare
training initiatives.
them with the knowledge and
One of the factors that has
skills to do an excellent job the first
contributed to this six-year record
time leads directly to our growth
is Orkin’s state-of-the-art Atlanta
and profitability.
Training Center. This complex
Rollins recognized and encourincludes simulated commercial cusaged top-performing employees at
tomer treatment environments, a
its 34th annual President’s Club, a
full-size functional residential house
companywide incentive event that
and a termite treating pavilion. Our
Orkin TV and our Orkin
honors the best of the best. Last
facility continues to be a tremendous
Training Center offer cutting
year, more than 300 employees
resource for on-site training as well as
edge training programs
were selected for this recognition,
satellite feeds to our 400 locations.
through interactive and
for which they and their spouses
Representatives from several of our
classroom environments.
received a company-sponsored trip
international franchise operations
to Whistler, British Columbia.
recently attended training at the
And we’re not the only ones recognizing our people’s
Center to experience firsthand our service protocols,
success. Several Rollins employees won national awards
methods and best practices.
Late in 2007, the Health Department of Gwinnett and recognition this year in multiple areas. Orkin
County, Georgia – one of the nation’s fastest-growing Technical Director and 40-plus-year employee Paul
counties for the past 20 years – sent its entire team of Hardy won the National Pest Management Association’s
county health officers to our facility to receive training President’s Award in recognition of his outstanding
on how to perform optimal pest inspections. Orkin also contribution to the NPMA, and the industry as a whole.
collaborated with some of its key national customers to Also, William Graves from Indianapolis, Indiana, was
develop and deliver a series of live satellite broadcasts, named Pest Control Technology magazine’s coveted
to educate Orkin employees about service issues specific Termite Technician of the Year, with Orkin finalists in
other categories including Joseph Celest from
to the customers’ requirements and expectations.
Rollins recently formed a Corporate Learning Riverside, California, Gordon Pierce from Mesa,
Steering Committee to develop and manage global Arizona, and Jake Driedger from PCO in Saskatoon,
learning strategies. An element of this project involved Saskatchawan, Canada. The company’s Public Relations
launching a Lifelong Learning program, created to help team won the prestigious Phoenix award from the Public
our employees grow and develop throughout their Relations Society of America for its work publicizing the
careers. A 2008 priority in this area is to establish a recent surge in U.S. bed bug infestations.
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P A R T N E R S H I P S

Orkin

continues to be the pest control partner of
choice for leading corporations and institutions around
the globe, such as the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC), the Smithsonian Institution, the
National Science Teachers Association and the National
Center for Healthy Housing.
During 2007, we continued
our successful collaboration
with the CDC, hosting its
insect- and rodent-borne
disease experts on Orkin TV
in a learning presentation for
our employees nationwide.
We plan to make this educational segment a regular
event, as part of our ongoing
“Train the Trainers” program
with the CDC.
We also expanded our
Orkin remains committed partnership with the National
Center for Healthy Housing
to the education of young
by creating a one-page home
people on the role of
illustration, which depicts
insects in the environment
various dangerous situations
through its partnership
that can occur where we
with the National Science
live. Featuring educational
Teachers Association.
information about pests and
rodents found in and around the home helps raise
consumer awareness of these threats and health hazards
along with lead, carbon monoxide, radon and mold.
We plan to expand this initiative into an interactive page
on Orkin’s Web site in 2008.
Our five-year outreach with the National Science
Teachers Association also progressed as we participated in
its national convention, where we distributed 6,000 pest
education posters and promoted our Orkin Man school
presentations. The Company enlists its field employees to
teach students in grades K-6 about the importance of
insects in the environment.
Last year, Orkin completed its first year as a member of the
highly respected LearnShare consortium, a group of diverse,
non-competing, industry-leading companies dedicated to

10
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sharing expertise and innovative training practices across
member organizations. As the only pest control company
invited to participate, Orkin enjoys access to a community
of more than 40 successful companies that share best
practices through training collaborations. Members of
LearnShare include 3M, General Motors, Levi Strauss &
Co., Motorola, Pfizer Inc. and UPS.
Rollins continued to partner with the Smithsonian
Institution. As the first corporate sponsor of a permanent
exhibit at the Smithsonian, we are gratified that the
O. Orkin Insect Zoo remains one of the National Museum
of Natural History’s most popular exhibits, with more
than two million visitors last year.
We are extremely proud of our relationships with all of
our strategic partners. The fact that these highly respected
institutions recognize Orkin as a leader in our industry is a
great tribute to our knowledge, employees and reputation.
We look forward to the challenges the new year
will bring.

O. Orkin Insect Zoo remains one of the
National Museum of Natural History’s most popular
exhibits, with more than 2 million visitors in 2007.
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PART I
Item 1.

Business

General
Rollins, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’) was originally incorporated in 1948 under the laws of the state of Delaware
as Rollins Broadcasting, Inc.
The Company is a national service company with headquarters located in Atlanta, Georgia, providing pest
and termite control services through its wholly-owned subsidiaries to both residential and commercial
customers in North America with international franchises in Mexico, Central America, the Caribbean, the
Middle East and Asia. Services are performed through a contract that specifies the pricing arrangement
with the customer.
Orkin, Inc. (‘‘Orkin’’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company founded in 1901, is one of the world’s
largest pest and termite control companies. It provides customized services from over 400 locations to
approximately 1.7 million customers. Orkin serves customers, either directly or indirectly through
franchises, in the United States, Canada, Mexico, Central America, the Caribbean, the Middle East and
Asia providing essential pest control services and protection against termite damage, rodents and insects to
homes and businesses, including hotels, food service establishments, food manufacturers, retailers and
transportation companies. Orkin operates under the Orkin, and PCO Services, Inc. trademarks and the
AcuridSM service mark. The Orkin brand name makes Orkin the most recognized pest and termite
company throughout the United States. The PCO Services brand name provides similar brand recognition
throughout Canada.
PCO Services, Inc., a subsidiary of Orkin’s founded in 1952, was acquired by Orkin in 1999. PCO Services
is the largest pest control service provider in Canada.
Western Pest Services (‘‘Western’’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company founded in 1928, was
acquired by Rollins, Inc. in 2004. Western is primarily a commercial pest control service company and its
business complements most of the services Orkin offers focusing on the northeastern United States.
The Industrial Fumigant Company (‘‘IFC’’), another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company founded in
1937 was, acquired by Rollins, Inc. in 2005. IFC is a leading provider of pest management and sanitation
services and products to the food and commodity industries.
The Company has only one reportable segment, its pest and termite control business. Revenue, operating
profit and identifiable assets for this segment, which includes the United States, Canada, Mexico, Central
America, the Caribbean, the Middle East and Asia are included in Item 8 of this document, ‘‘Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data’’ on pages 39 and 40. The Company’s results of operations and its
financial condition are not reliant upon any single customer or a few customers or the Company’s foreign
operations.
Common Stock Repurchase Program
In 2007, total share repurchases were 2.4 million shares adjusted for the three-for-two stock split effective
December 10, 2007. In total, 1.0 million additional (post-split) shares may be purchased under previously
approved programs by the Board of Directors. The program does not have an expiration date.
Backlog
Backlog services and orders are usually provided within the month following the month of order receipt,
except in the area of prepaid pest control and bait monitoring services, which are usually provided within

15

twelve months of order receipt. The Company does not have a material portion of its business that may be
subject to renegotiation of profits or termination of contracts at the election of a governmental entity.
At December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Backlog

$5,730

$5,483

$5,870

Orkin Franchise
The Company continues to expand its growth through Orkin’s franchise program. This program is
primarily used in smaller markets where it is currently not economically feasible to locate a conventional
Orkin branch. The franchisee is subject to a contractual buyback provision at Orkin’s option with a
pre-determined purchase price using a formula applied to revenues of the franchise. The Company
through its wholly-owned Orkin subsidiary began its Orkin franchise program in the U.S. in 1994, and
established its first international franchise in Mexico in 2000, its second international franchise in Panama
in 2003 and its third international franchise in Costa Rica in 2006. Orkin established four additional
international franchises in 2007 with additions in Honduras, the United Arab Emirates, the Dominican
Republic and South Korea.
At December 31,
2007
2006
2005

Franchises
United States Franchises
International Franchises

51
7

55
3

55
2

Total Franchises

58

58

57

Subsequently, Orkin established two new international franchises in January 2008, one in the city of
Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and one in the country of Qatar.
Seasonality
The business of the Company is affected by the seasonal nature of the Company’s pest and termite control
services. The increase in pest pressure and activity, as well as the metamorphosis of termites in the spring
and summer (the occurrence of which is determined by the timing of the change in seasons), has
historically resulted in an increase in the revenue of the Company’s pest and termite control operations
during such periods as evidenced by the following chart.
Total Net Revenues
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$201,232
239,618
238,116
215,954

$194,187
232,222
227,816
204,653

$183,915
214,326
209,346
194,830

Year ended December 31,

$894,920

$858,878

$802,417

Inventories
The Company has relationships with multiple vendors for pest and termite control treatment products and
maintains a sufficient level of chemicals, materials and other supplies to fulfill its immediate servicing
needs and to alleviate any potential short-term shortage in availability from its national network of
suppliers.

16

Competition
The Company believes that Rollins, through Orkin, Orkin’s subsidiary PCO Services, Western Pest
Services, and Industrial Fumigant Company, competes favorably with competitors as one of the world’s
largest pest and termite control companies. The Company’s competitors include Terminix, Ecolab and
Rentokil.
The principal methods of competition in the Company’s pest and termite control business are quality of
service and guarantees, including the money-back guarantee on pest and termite control, and the termite
re-treatment and damage repair guarantee to qualified homeowners.
Research and Development
Expenditures by the Company on research activities relating to the development of new products or
services are not significant. Some of the new and improved service methods and products are researched,
developed and produced by unaffiliated universities and companies. Also, a portion of these methods and
products are produced to the specifications provided by the Company.
The Company maintains a close relationship with several universities for research and validation of
treatment procedures and material selection.
The Company also conducts tests of new products with the specific manufacturers of such products. The
Company also works closely with industry consultants and suppliers to improve service and establish new
and innovative methods and procedures.
Environmental and Regulatory Considerations
The Company’s pest control business is subject to various legislative and regulatory enactments that are
designed to protect the environment, public health and consumers. Compliance with these requirements
has not had a material negative effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or
liquidity.
Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodentcide Act (‘‘FIFRA’’)
This federal law (as amended) grants to the states the responsibility to be the primary agent in
enforcement and conditions under which pest control companies operate. Each state must meet certain
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency in regulating the following: licensing, record keeping,
contracts, standards of application, training and registration of products. This allows each state to institute
certain features that set their regulatory programs in keeping with special interests of the citizens’ wishes in
each state. The pest control industry is impacted by these federal and state regulations.
Food Quality Protection Act of 1996 (‘‘FQPA’’)
The FQPA governs the manufacture, labeling, handling and use of pesticides and does not have a direct
impact on how the Company conducts its business.
Environmental Remediation
The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (‘‘CERCLA’’), also known
as Superfund, is the primary Federal statute regulating the cleanup of inactive hazardous substance sites
and imposing liability for cleanup on the responsible parties. Responsibilities governed by this statute
include the management of hazardous substances, reporting releases of hazardous substances, and
establishing the necessary contracts and agreements to conduct cleanup. Customarily, the parties involved
will work with the EPA and under the direction of the responsible state agency to agree and implement a
plan for site remediation. Consistent with the Company’s responsibilities under these regulations, the
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Company undertakes environmental assessments and remediation of hazardous substances from time to
time as the Company determines its responsibilities for these purposes. As these situations arise, the
Company accrues management’s best estimate of future costs for these activities. Based on management’s
current estimates of these costs, management does not believe these costs are material to the Company’s
financial condition or operating results.
Employees
The number of persons employed by the Company as of January 31, 2008 was approximately 8,500.
At December 31,
2007
2006
2005
Employees

8,500

8,400

8,000

Available Information
Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to these reports, are available free of charge on our web site at www.rollins.com as soon as
reasonably practicable after those reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
Item 1.A.

Risk Factors

We may not be able to compete in the competitive and technical pest control industry in the future.
We operate in a highly competitive industry. Our revenues and earnings may be affected by the following
factors: changes in competitive prices, weather related issues, general economic issues and governmental
regulations. We compete with other large pest control companies, as well as numerous smaller pest control
companies for a finite number of customers. We believe that the principal competitive factors in the
market areas that we serve are product and service quality and availability, terms of guarantees, reputation
for safety, technical proficiency and price. Although we believe that our experience and reputation for
safety and quality service is excellent, we cannot assure that we will be able to maintain our competitive
position.
We may not be able to identify, complete or successfully integrate acquisitions.
Acquisitions have been and will continue to be an important element of our business strategy. We cannot
assure that we will be able to identify and acquire acceptable acquisition candidates on terms favorable to
us in the future. We cannot assure that we will be able to integrate successfully the operations and assets of
any acquired business with our own business. Any inability on our part to integrate and manage the growth
from acquired businesses could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition.
Our operations are affected by adverse weather conditions.
Our operations are directly affected by the weather conditions across the United States and Canada. The
business of the Company is affected by the seasonal nature of the Company’s pest and termite control
services. The increase in pest pressure and activity, as well as the metamorphosis of termites in the spring
and summer (the occurrence of which is determined by the timing of the change in seasons), has
historically resulted in an increase in the revenue and income of the Company’s pest and termite control
operations during such periods. The business of the Company is also affected by extreme weather such as
drought which can greatly reduce the pest population for extended periods.
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Our inability to attract and retain skilled workers may impair growth potential and profitability.
Our ability to remain productive and profitable will depend substantially on our ability to attract and retain
skilled workers. Our ability to expand our operations is in part impacted by our ability to increase our labor
force. The demand for skilled employees is high, and the supply is very limited. A significant increase in the
wages paid by competing employers could result in a reduction in our skilled labor force, increases in the
wage rates paid by us, or both. If either of these events occurred, our capacity and profitability could be
diminished, and our growth potential could be impaired.
Our operations could be affected by pending and ongoing litigation.
In the normal course of business, Orkin, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, is a defendant in a number of
lawsuits or arbitrations, which allege that plaintiffs have been damaged as a result of the rendering of
services by Orkin. Orkin is actively contesting these actions. Some lawsuits have been filed (Mark and
Christine Butland et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. et al.; Ernest W. Warren and Dolores G. Warren
et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc., et al.; John Maciel v. Orkin, Inc., et al.; Ronald and
Ileana Krzyzanowsky et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc.; Adam Stauber v.
Rollins, Inc. et al.; and Roy Sheppard et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc.) in which
the plaintiffs are seeking certification of a class. The cases originate in Florida, Georgia, California, and
Arkansas, respectively. In Butland, pending in the Circuit Court of Hillsborough County, Tampa, Florida,
the Court issued a ruling certifying this as a class action, but Orkin appealed this ruling to the Florida
Second District Court of Appeals, which in June 2006 denied certification of the class. Following the
Plaintiffs’ motion for rehearing, the court upheld its prior decision that class certification was improper but
also ruled that the Plaintiffs can return to the trial court and attempt to certify a narrower class. Orkin will
vigorously oppose any effort by the Plaintiffs to do so. In Warren, the Superior Court of Cobb County,
Marietta, Georgia, ruled in August 2006, certifying the class action against Orkin. Orkin appealed this
ruling to the Georgia Court of Appeals, which in November 2007 denied certification of the class. Plaintiff
appealed this ruling to the Supreme Court of Georgia, which in February 2008 denied Plaintiff’s petition
for review. The Maciel lawsuit, a wage and hour related matter, was filed in the Superior Court of Los
Angeles County, California and has not been scheduled for a class certification hearing. The Krzyzanowsky
lawsuit, a termite service related matter, was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California and has not been scheduled for a class certification hearing. The Stauber lawsuit, a
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act related matter, was filed in the United States District Court for the
Central District of California and a date has not been scheduled for a hearing on class certification. The
Sheppard lawsuit, a termite related matter, was recently filed in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Arkansas and a date has not been scheduled for a hearing on class certification. The
Company believes these matters to be without merit and intends to vigorously contest certification and
defend itself through trial, if necessary. The Company does not believe that any pending claim, proceeding
or litigation, either alone or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position; however, it is possible that an unfavorable outcome of some or all of the matters,
however unlikely, could result in a charge that might be material to the results of an individual quarter.
Our operations may be adversely affected if we are unable to comply with regulatory and
environmental laws.
Our business is significantly affected by environmental laws and other regulations relating to the pest
control industry and by changes in such laws and the level of enforcement of such laws. We are unable to
predict the level of enforcement of existing laws and regulations, how such laws and regulations may be
interpreted by enforcement agencies or court rulings, or whether additional laws and regulations will be
adopted. We believe our present operations substantially comply with applicable federal and state
environmental laws and regulations. We also believe that compliance with such laws has had no material
adverse effect on our operations to date. However, such environmental laws are changed frequently. We
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are unable to predict whether environmental laws will, in the future, materially affect our operations and
financial condition. Penalties for noncompliance with these laws may include cancellation of licenses, fines,
and other corrective actions, which would negatively affect our future financial results.
The Company’s Management Has a Substantial Ownership Interest; Public Stockholders May Have No
Effective Voice In the Company’s Management
The Company has elected the ‘‘Controlled Company’’ exemption under rule 303A of the New York Stock
Exchange (‘‘NYSE’’) Company Guide. The Company is a ‘‘Controlled Company’’ because a group that
includes the Company’s Chairman of the Board, R. Randall Rollins, his brother, Gary W. Rollins, who is
the President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, also a director of the Company,
certain companies under their control, and the nephew of R. Randall Rollins and son of Gary W. Rollins,
Glen W. Rollins, who is the Vice President of Rollins, Inc., controls in excess of fifty percent of the
Company’s voting power. As a ‘‘Controlled Company,’’ the Company need not comply with certain NYSE
rules.
Rollins, Inc.’s executive officers, directors and their affiliates hold directly or through indirect beneficial
ownership, in the aggregate, approximately 59 percent of the Company’s outstanding shares of common
stock. As a result, these persons will effectively control the operations of the Company, including the
election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions such as acquisitions and approval of
matters requiring stockholder approval. This concentration of ownership could also have the effect of
delaying or preventing a third party from acquiring control of the Company at a premium.
Item 1.B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

None
Item 2.

Properties.

The Company’s administrative headquarters are owned by the Company, and are located at 2170 Piedmont
Road, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30324. The Company owns or leases over 400 branch offices and operating
facilities used in its business as well as the Rollins Training Center located in Atlanta, Georgia, the Orkin
Customer Care Center located in Covington, GA, and the Pacific Division Administration and Training
Center in Riverside, CA. None of the branch offices, individually considered, represents a materially
important physical property of the Company. The facilities are suitable and adequate to meet the current
and reasonably anticipated future needs of the Company.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings.

Orkin, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, is a named defendant in Mark and Christine Butland et al. v.
Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. et al. pending in the Circuit Court of Hillsborough County, Tampa,
Florida. The plaintiffs filed suit in March of 1999 and are seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief.
The Court ruled in early April 2002, certifying the class action lawsuit against Orkin. Orkin appealed this
ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeals, which remanded the case back to the trial court for
further findings. In December 2004 the Court issued a new ruling certifying the class action. Orkin
appealed this new ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeals. In June 2006, the Florida Second
District Court of Appeals issued a ruling denying certification of the class. Following the Plaintiffs’ motion
for rehearing, the court upheld its prior decision that class certification was improper but also ruled that
the Plaintiffs can return to the trial court and attempt to certify a narrower class. Orkin will vigorously
oppose any effort by the Plaintiffs to do so. Orkin believes this case to be without merit and intends to
defend itself vigorously through trial, if necessary. At this time, the final outcome of the litigation cannot
be determined. The Company does not believe that any pending claim, proceeding or litigation, either
alone or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position; however,
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it is possible that an unfavorable outcome of some or all of the matters, however unlikely, could result in a
charge that might be material to the results of an individual quarter.
Additionally, in the normal course of business, Orkin is a defendant in a number of lawsuits or arbitrations,
which allege that plaintiffs have been damaged as a result of the rendering of services by Orkin. Orkin is
actively contesting these actions. Some lawsuits have been filed (Ernest W. Warren and Dolores G. Warren
et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc., et al.; John Maciel v. Orkin, Inc., et al.; Ronald and
Ileana Krzyzanowsky et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc.; Adam Stauber v.
Rollins, Inc. et al.; and Roy Sheppard et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc.) in which
the Plaintiffs are seeking certification of a class. The cases originate in Georgia, California, and Arkansas,
respectively. In Warren, the Superior Court of Cobb County, Marietta, Georgia, ruled in August 2006,
certifying the class action against Orkin. Orkin appealed this ruling to the Georgia Court of Appeals, which
in November 2007 denied certification of the class. Plaintiff appealed this ruling to the Supreme Court of
Georgia, which in February 2008 denied Plaintiff’s petition for review. The Maciel lawsuit, a wage and hour
related matter, was filed in the Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California and has not been
scheduled for a class certification hearing. The Krzyzanowsky lawsuit, a termite service related matter, was
filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California and has not been scheduled
for a class certification hearing. The Stauber lawsuit, a Fair Debt Collection Practices Act related matter,
was filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California and a date has not been
scheduled for a hearing on class certification. The Sheppard lawsuit, a termite related matter, was recently
filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas and a date has not been
scheduled for a hearing on class certification. The Company believes these matters to be without merit and
intends to vigorously contest certification and defend itself through trial or arbitration, if necessary. The
Company does not believe that any pending claim, proceeding or litigation, either alone or in the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position; however, it is possible
that an unfavorable outcome of some or all of the matters, however unlikely, could result in a charge that
might be material to the results of an individual quarter.
Orkin is involved in certain environmental matters primarily arising in the normal course of business. In
the opinion of management, the Company’s liability under any of these matters would not and did not
materially affect its financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
Item 4.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or
otherwise, during the fourth quarter of 2007.
Item 4.A

Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Each of the executive officers of the Company was elected by the Board of Directors to serve until the
Board of Directors’ meeting immediately following the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until his
earlier removal by the Board of Directors or his resignation. The following table lists the executive officers
of the Company and their ages, offices with the Company, and the dates from which they have continually
served in their present offices with the Company.
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Name

Age

R. Randall Rollins (1)
Gary W. Rollins (1) (2)

76
63

Harry J. Cynkus (3)
Michael W. Knottek (4)
Glen W. Rollins (5)

58
63
41

Office with Registrant
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chief Operating Officer
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Senior Vice President and Secretary
Vice President

Date First Elected
to Present Office
10/22/1991
7/24/2001
5/28/1998
4/23/2002
4/23/2002

(1) R. Randall Rollins and Gary W. Rollins are brothers.
(2) Gary W. Rollins was elected to the office of President and Chief Operating Officer in January 1984.
He was elected to the additional office of Chief Executive Officer in July 2001. In February 2004, he
was named Chairman of Orkin, Inc.
(3) Harry J. Cynkus joined the Company in April 1998 and, in May 1998, was elected Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Cynkus served as Chief Financial Officer of Mayer
Electric Company, a wholesaler of electrical supplies. From 1994 to 1996, he served as Vice
President—Information Systems for Brach & Brock Confections, the acquirer of Brock Candy
Company, where Mr. Cynkus served as Vice President—Finance and Chief Financial Officer from
1992 to 1994. From 1989 to 1992, he served as Vice President—Finance of Initial USA, a division of
an international support services company.
(4) Michael W. Knottek joined the Company in June 1997 as Vice President and, in addition, was elected
Secretary in May 1998. He became Senior Vice President in April of 2002. From 1992 to 1997,
Mr. Knottek held a variety of executive management positions with National Linen Service, including
Senior Vice President of Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to 1992, he
held a variety of senior positions with Initial USA, finally serving as President from 1991 to 1992.
(5) Glen W. Rollins is the son of Gary W. Rollins. He joined the Company in 1989 and has held a variety
of field management and staff positions within the organization. He was elected Executive Vice
President of Orkin, Inc. in June 2001. In April 2002, he was named Vice President of Rollins, Inc.
In February 2004, he was named President and Chief Operating Officer of Orkin, Inc.
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PART II
Item 5.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities.

The Common Stock of the Company is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded on the
Philadelphia, Chicago and Boston Exchanges under the symbol ROL. The high and low prices of the
Company’s common stock and dividends paid for each quarter in the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 (all prices were adjusted for the three-for-two stock split effective December 10, 2007) were as
follows:
STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS
Rounded to the nearest $.01
Stock Price
High
Low

2007
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 15.75 $ 13.75
16.13
14.65
19.57
15.22
20.60
17.69

Dividends
Paid
Per Share
$
$
$
$

Stock Price
High
Low

2006

0.05
0.05
0.05
0.05

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 14.50 $ 12.67
14.16
12.51
14.72
12.65
15.30
13.67

Dividends
Paid
Per Share
$
$
$
$

0.042
0.042
0.042
0.042

The number of stockholders of record as of January 31, 2008 was 1420.
On January 22, 2008 the Board of Directors approved a quarterly cash dividend per common share of
$0.0625 payable March 10, 2008 to stockholders of record at the close of business February 8, 2008. The
Company expects to continue to pay cash dividends to the common stockholders, subject to the earnings
and financial condition of the Company and other relevant factors.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
In April 2005, the Company announced that in addition to the 0.3 million Shares still available for
repurchase under the Company’s existing share repurchase plan, the Company’s Board of Directors
authorized the purchase of an additional 4.0 million shares of our common stock. Share repurchases during
the year ended December 31, 2007 totaled 2.4 million, adjusted for the three-for-two stock split effective
December 10, 2007, at a weighted average price of $16.25 per share. In total, 1.0 million additional
(post-split) shares may be purchased under programs previously approved by the Board of Directors. The
program does not have an expiration date. The following table summarizes the Company’s share
repurchases during the Company’s fourth quarter of 2007:

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased (1)

Weighted
Average
Price Paid
per Share

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased as
Part of Publicly
Announced
Repurchase
Plans (2)

October 1 to 31, 2007
November 1 to 30, 2007
December 1 to 31, 2007

10,298
144,900
421,750

$ 19.50
$ 18.65
$ 19.79

—
144,900
421,750

1,580,916
1,436,016
1,014,266

Total

576,948

$ 19.31

566,650

1,014,266

Period

Maximum Number
of Shares that
May Yet Be
Purchased Under
the Repurchase
Plans

(1) Includes repurchases in connection with exercise of employee stock options of 10,298 in October 2007.
(2) These shares were repurchased under the April 2005 plan to repurchase up to 4.0 million shares of the
Company’s common stock. This plan has no expiration date.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph sets forth a five year comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return based on
the performance of the stock of the Company as compared with both a broad equity market index and an
industry or peer group index. The indices included in the following graph are the S&P 500 Index and the
S&P 500 Commercial Services Index.
COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
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Item 6.

Selected Financial Data.

The following summary financial data of Rollins highlights selected financial data and should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements included elsewhere in this document.
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
All earnings per share and dividends per share have been restated for the 2007 and 2005 three-for-two
stock splits effective December 10, 2007 and March 10, 2005, respectively.
(in thousands except per share data)
OPERATIONS SUMMARY
Revenues
Income Before Income Taxes
Income before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle
Cumulative effect on prior years of changing to
different revenue and cost recognition method
Net Income
Income Per Share – Basic:
Income before change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle
Net Income
Income Per Share – Diluted:
Income before change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle
Net Income

Years Ended December 31,
2006
2005
2004

2007

2003

$ 894,920
104,913

$ 858,878
95,159

$ 802,417
87,955

$ 750,884
98,712

$ 677,013
60,030

64,731

57,809

52,773

58,259

35,761

—

—

—

(6,204)

—

$

64,731

$

57,809

$

52,773

$

52,055

$

35,761

$

0.65

$

0.57

$

0.52

$

0.57

$

0.35

—

—

—

(0.06)

—

$

0.65

$

0.57

$

0.52

$

0.51

$

0.35

$

0.64

$

0.56

$

0.51

$

0.55

$

0.34

—

—

—

(0.06)

—

$

0.64

$

0.56

$

0.51

$

0.49

$

0.34

Dividends paid per share

$

0.20

$

0.17

$

0.13

$

0.11

$

0.09

Pro forma amounts assuming the new accounting
method is applied retroactively
Net Income
Income Per Share – Basic:
Income Per Share – Diluted:

$
$
$

64,731
0.65
0.64

$
$
$

57,809
0.57
0.56

$
$
$

52,773
0.52
0.51

$
$
$

58,259
0.57
0.55

*
*
*

*The pro forma amount for 2003 is not determinable, as the newly adopted accounting method requires
discrete information on claims outstanding and certain other post-contract liabilities that is not available.
FINANCIAL POSITION
(in thousands)
Total assets
Non-current capital lease obligations
Non-compete agreements
Stockholders’ equity
Number of shares outstanding at year-end

At December 31,
2005
2004

2007

2006

$ 475,228
$
601
$
775
$ 233,553
100,636

$ 453,175
$
124
$
660
$ 211,459
101,837
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$ 438,420
$
560
$
456
$ 176,951
102,017

$ 418,780
$
—
$
1,700
$ 167,549
102,756

2003
$ 349,904
$
—
$
1,734
$ 138,774
101,603

Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Revenues
Cost of services provided
Depreciation and amortization
Sales, general and administrative
Pension Curtailment Gain
(Gain) on sales of assets
Interest income

$ 894,920 $ 858,878 $ 802,417
468,665
457,869
437,160
27,068
26,860
24,280
296,615
280,578
259,763
—
—
(4,176)
(52)
(81)
(982)
(2,289)
(1,507)
(1,583)

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

104,913
40,182
$

64,731

95,159
37,350
$

57,809

$

% better/
(worse) as
compared to
prior year
2007
2006
4.2%
(2.4)
(0.8)
(5.7)
—
(35.8)
51.9

7.0%
(4.7)
(10.6)
(8.0)
(100.0)
(91.8)
(4.8)

87,955
35,182

10.3
(7.6)

8.2
(6.2)

52,773

12.0%

9.5%

General Operating Comments
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company’s financial results improved for the 10th consecutive
year due to the positive revenue growth in all service lines and the success of the Company’s sales and
marketing programs.
Revenues
The Company’s strategy has been to increase our revenues through increased sales with a priority on
commercial sales. The Company has increased its sales force and organic growth. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, the Company’s revenues increased 4.2%. Commercial pest control now represents
44.0% of the Company’s business which is an increase of 63.0% since 1998 when commercial pest control
represented 27.0% of the Company’s business. The Company increased the average new sale price by over
15%, which increased the average contract price for commercial customers 23% over the past two years.
The average monthly sales for Commercial account managers increased 34% in the last three years, which
reflect the continued maturation of our sales force.
Residential pest control, which now represents 36.9% of the Company’s business, grew 3.8% from
$316.8 million to $329.0 million, while our Termite Service, represents 19.3% of our business. Conventional
leads were down due to the extreme drought in much of the United States. The investment made in web
marketing helped to offset the fall off, resulting in an increase in demand for both residential and termite
services late in the season that carried through until the end of 2007. Termite retention improved however
sales remained flat.
Revenue growth was enjoyed by all three lines of business and is attributable in part to the Company’s
national Orkin Customer Service Center, OCSC, which we established in 2006. Its role in part is to receive
and sell the majority of residential pest control leads and help manage branch handling of termite control
leads. The Company expects the OCSC to contribute to growth in 2008 as Orkin improves in both of these
areas.
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Web Development
During 2007, the Company continued to build upon the investment made in web marketing the previous
year. This strategy is allowing Orkin to use its size and national branch network to a competitive
advantage. Orkin expects the number of prospects for both residential and commercial web leads to
increase further in 2008. Orkin has engaged a new search agency, 360i, to help make it easier for customers
to access Orkin. Orkin has also engaged a new Yellow Pages agency to assist in improving marketing in this
area, and to help find new customers and create more efficiency from this channel in terms of producing a
lower cost per customer attracted.
Advertising
The Company felt it needed to do a better job in communicating with prospects and be more effective in
reaching Orkin’s target audience. The Company determined that it needed to improve how it advertises
and promotes the Orkin brand in conventional media (radio, TV, Cable etc.). Accordingly, in 2007, the
Company hired The Richards Group of Dallas, Texas as its agency of record.
Technology
Orkin is continuing to make progress on its routing and scheduling management system, called ORION.
Orkin expects to go live at several of branches early in the second half of 2008 and has begun planning a
full implementation prior to December 31, 2008. Due to Orkin’s size, it may take as much as two years for
a complete rollout. Orkin is currently utilizing Map Point software, an offshoot of their GPS system to
begin the first phase of route organization. Part of this initiative involves refining and standardizing
customer data, which likewise will be a precursor to an ORION conversion.
Employees
Rollins continues to invest in its greatest asset, its people. During 2007 training became available to all
employees in 350 locations via Orkin’s Orkin TV satellite network. Orkin was recognized for the sixth year
in a row by Training Magazine as one of the top 125 companies that excel in human capital development.
Orkin also launched its ‘‘Lifelong Learning’’ initiative aimed at helping all field employees grow and
develop throughout their careers. A top priority in 2008 is to identify specific ‘‘performance based’’
opportunities to help employees develop to their highest potential.
Rollins, Inc. In 2007 conducted its first annual Women’s Leadership Conference. The Company
subsequently formed a Women’s Resource Group to further develop initiatives to both recruit more
women to Rollins and Orkin and to advance the careers of the females presently at the Company.
Three-for-Two Stock Split
On October 23, 2007, Rollins, Inc.’s Board of Directors declared a three-for-two stock split of the
Company’s common shares. The additional shares were distributed on December 10, 2007, to shareholders
of record on November 12, 2007. All share, earnings per share, and dividends per share data presented
throughout this document, including the accompanying financial statements and management’s discussion
and analysis, have been adjusted to reflect this stock split.
On January 25, 2005, Rollins, Inc.’s Board of Directors declared a three-for-two stock split of the
Company’s common shares. The additional shares were distributed on March 10, 2005 to all shareholders
of record at February 10, 2005. All share, earnings per share, and dividends per share data, prior to this
stock split, presented throughout this document, including the accompanying financial statements and
management’s discussion and analysis, have been adjusted to reflect this stock split.
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Results of Operations—2007 Versus 2006
Overview
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company had net income of $64.7 million compared to
$57.8 million in 2006, which represents a 12.0% increase. In addition to the revenue increase of 4.2%, Cost
of Service Provided increased $10.8 million or 2.4% compared to the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006. Gross margin improved to 47.6% for 2007 versus 46.7% for 2006. The largest factor
affecting the Company’s gross margin was improvements in our cost of risk. The Company’s termite
provision has decreased $5.8 million as actual termite claims paid in 2007 declined significantly, decreasing
over 30% or $6.6 million. In addition our insurance costs have declined due to the success of the
Company’s loss control programs.
Revenues
Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $894.9 million, an increase of $36.0 million or 4.2%
from 2006 revenues of $858.9 million. The Company’s commercial revenue grew 6.9%, due primarily to
expanded sales force, better customer retention in Orkin’s and Western Pest’s operations, and strong
growth at PCO, Orkin’s Canadian business, which is fundamentally a commercial business. Residential pest
control revenues rose by 3.8% in 2007, due to an increased number of leads received, better average selling
prices, continued improvements in customer retention, and a successful price increase program. Everyother-month service, the Company’s primary residential pest control service offering, now comprises 64%
of our residential pest control customer base at December 31, 2007. During 2007, the Company continued
to build upon the investment made in the internet marketing area from previous year. This strategy
allowed the Company to use its size and national branch network to a competitive advantage. The
Company expects the number of prospects for both residential and commercial web leads to increase
further in 2008.
The Company’s foreign operations accounted for approximately 8.1% of total revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2007 as compared to 7.4% in 2006. The Company established new franchises in Honduras,
the United Arab Emirates, the Dominican Republic and South Korea in 2007 for a total of seven
international franchises. At the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, Orkin had 58 domestic and
international franchises in total
Cost of Services Provided
Cost of services provided for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased $10.8 million or 2.4% compared
to the twelve months ended December 31, 2006. Gross margin improved to 47.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2007 versus 46.7% for the year ended December 31, 2006. The largest factor was
improvements in our cost of risk. The Company’s termite provision has decreased $5.8 million as actual
termite claims paid in 2007 declined significantly, decreasing over 30% or $6.6 million as compared to
2006. Less than half of one percent of customers filed claims in 2007. In addition, our insurance casualty
costs have declined due to the success of the Company’s loss control programs.
Depreciation and Amortization
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company’s depreciation and amortization increased slightly to
$27.1 million or 0.8%, compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 due to the depreciation
on purchased equipment of $16.2 million in 2007, which was partially offset by several fixed assets being
fully depreciated during the year. For the year ended December 31, 2007 $13.4 million of the total
depreciation and amortization was related to the amortization of intangible assets.
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Sales, General and Administrative
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company’s sales, general and administrative expenses
increased $16.0 million or 5.7% compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 representing
33.1% of revenues compared to 32.7% in 2006. Sales, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of revenues increased due to higher sales and administrative salaries due to the expansion of the sales
force. This is partially offset by the Company experiencing reductions in bad debt expense and in its
summer sales program cost.
Interest Income
Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $2.3 million, an increase of $0.8 million
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 due primarily to higher average invested assets over the
course of 2007.
Taxes
The Company’s effective tax rate was 38.3% in 2007 compared to 39.3% in 2006 due primarily to an
increase in tax exempt income.
Results of Operations—2006 Versus 2005
Overview
The Company’s addition of the Industrial Fumigant Company in October 2005, along with continued
emphasis on customer retention and building recurring revenues was the primary driver of revenue growth
of 7.0% for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Revenues
Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $858.9 million, an increase of $56.5 million or 7.0%
from 2005 revenues of $802.4 million. The Company’s acquisition of the Industrial Fumigant Company in
October 2005, increased revenue by $25.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and by
$6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The Company’s historical business excluding the
Industrial Fumigant Company was $833.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $796.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005, a $36.9 million increase or 4.6% for the year compared to 2005 as
set forth in the following table:
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ROLLINS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
REVENUE RECONCILIATION
REVENUES EXCLUDING THE INDUSTRIAL FUMIGANT COMPANY
Twelve Months Ended,
December 31
2006
2005
(unaudited) (unaudited)

$ Better/
(worse)

% Better/
(worse)

Reported net revenues
Less: The Industrial Fumigant Company (IFC)

$858,878
25,920

$802,417
6,275

$56,461
19,645

7.0%
313.1

Net revenues excluding IFC

$832,958

$796,142

$36,816

4.6%

The Company’s commercial revenue grew 9.0%, due primarily to the acquisition of the Industrial
Fumigant Company, expanded sales force, better customer retention in Orkin’s U.S. operations, and strong
growth in its Canadian business operations, which is fundamentally a commercial business. Residential pest
control revenues rose by 4.9% in 2006, due to an increased number of leads received, better average selling
prices, continued improvements in customer retention, and a successful price increase. Every-other-month
service, the Company’s primary residential pest control service offering, now comprises over 63% of our
residential pest control customer base at December 31, 2006.
The Company’s foreign operations accounted for approximately 7.4% of total revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to 7.1% in 2005.
Cost of Services Provided
Cost of services provided for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $20.7 million or 4.7%. Gross
margin expressed as a percentage of revenues increased, representing 46.7% of revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2006 and 45.5% for the prior year. The dollar increase was mainly due to the addition
of the Industrial Fumigant Company, which accounted for $17.7 million of the total, as well as increases in
service salaries, insurance and claims, and fleet expenses due to higher fuel costs. Service technician
productivity and average pay continued to improve, which leads to better employee retention and
ultimately improved customer retention. Cost of services provided as a percent of revenue decreased
primarily due to reduced insurance and claims and favorable group medical costs.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $26.9 million or
10.6% higher than the prior year. The increase was due to an additional $1.5 million of depreciation and
amortization expense resulting primarily from the acquisition of the Industrial Fumigant Company. The
Company had approximately $18.7 million in capital expenditures during the year ended December 31,
2006 compared to $25.5 million in 2005.
Sales, General and Administrative
Sales, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $20.8 million
or 8.0% while the expense margin increased by 0.3 percentage points, or 32.7% of total revenues compared
to 32.4% for the prior year. The dollar increase for the year was primarily a result of the acquisition the
Industrial Fumigant Company, as well as increases in administrative and sales salaries. Sales, general and
administrative expenses as a percent of revenues increased due to the higher salary expense related to
approximately 100 plus sales associates the Company added to its sales force, greater salaries due to
expansion of call center staff offset by the lower relative Sales, General and Administrative cost of the
Industrial Fumigant Company.
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Pension Curtailment
In June 2005, the Company recorded a $4.2 million non-cash curtailment gain in accordance with SFAS
No. 88, ‘‘Employer’s Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and
for Termination Benefits’’, (‘‘SFAS No. 88’’) in connection with freezing our defined benefit pension plan,
using actuarial assumptions consistent with those we used at December 31, 2004. SFAS No. 88 requires
curtailment accounting if an event eliminates, for a significant number of employees, the accrual of defined
benefits for some or all of their future services. In the event of a curtailment, an adjustment must be
recognized for the unrecognized prior service cost associated with years of service no longer expected to be
rendered. This event did not reoccur in 2006.
Interest Income
Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $1.5 million, a decrease of $0.1 million
compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 due to lower average invested assets over the course of
2006.
Taxes
The Company’s effective tax rate was 39.3% in 2006 compared to 40.0% in 2005.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Cash Flow
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $71.3 million,
$63.3 million and $43.1 million, respectively.
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Net cash
Net cash
Net cash
Effect of

provided by operating activities
used in investing activities
used in financing activities
exchange rate changes on cash

$ 88,762 $ 85,201 $ 76,750
(22,754) (27,981) (51,387)
(59,798) (36,389) (40,149)
1,726
(552)
1,114

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and short-term investments

$ 7,936

$ 20,279

$(13,672)

The Company’s operations generated cash of $88.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
primarily from net income of $64.7 million, compared with cash provided by operating activities of
$85.2 million in 2006 and $76.8 million in 2005. The Company believes its current cash balances, future
cash flows from operating activities and available borrowings under its $70.0 million line of credit will be
sufficient to finance its current operations and obligations, and fund expansion of the business for the
foreseeable future. To the extent the Company incurs unanticipated capital expenditures or completes any
significant acquisitions, the Company may fund such transactions using an increased credit facility or other
equity or debt financing arrangements. The Company’s $70.0 million line of credit is designed for the
Company to be able to increase the line with a minimum of effort.
The Company made a contribution of $5.0 million to its defined benefit retirement plan (the ‘‘Plan’’)
during each of the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 as a result of the Plan’s funding status. The
Company’s pension plan is currently fully-funded and management believes that it will not make any
contributions to the pension plan during fiscal 2008. In the opinion of management, additional Plan
contributions will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or
liquidity.
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The Company used $22.8 million on investments for the year ended December 31, 2007. The Company
invested approximately $16.2 million in capital expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2007.
Capital expenditures for the year consisted primarily of equipment replacements and upgrades and
improvements to the Company’s management information systems. The Company expects to invest
between $15.0 million and $20.0 million in 2008 in capital expenditures. During 2007, the Company made
several acquisitions totaling $6.8 million compared to $10.1 million during 2006. The acquisitions were
fully funded with cash from operations in 2007. The Company continues to seek new acquisitions and will
also give consideration to any attractive acquisition opportunities presented. The Company sold four
international franchises, one each in the United Arab Emirates, Honduras, the Dominican Republic and
South Korea in 2007 generating $0.2 million in cash. The Company continues to seek new franchise
opportunities both domestically as well as internationally.
The Company used $59.8 million on financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2007. A total of
$20.3 million was paid in cash dividends ($0.05 per share each quarter) during the year ended
December 31, 2007, compared to $17.0 million ($0.04 per share each quarter) during the year ended
December 31, 2006. The Company used $42.0 million to repurchase 2.4 million shares of its common stock
(adjusted for the three-for-two stock spilt effective December 10, 2007) at an average price of $16.25 per
share during the year ended December 31, 2007 and there remain 1.0 million (post-split) shares authorized
to be repurchased under prior Board authorization
The Company maintains $70.0 million of credit facilities with commercial banks, of which no borrowings
were outstanding as of December 31, 2007. The Company maintains approximately $38.3 million in letters
of credit, which reduced its borrowing capacity under the credit facilities. These letters of credit are
required by the Company’s fronting insurance companies and/or certain states, due to the Company’s
self-funded status, to secure various workers’ compensation and casualty insurance contracts. These letters
of credit are established by the bank for the Company’s fronting insurance companies as collateral,
although the Company believes that it has adequate liquid assets, funding sources and insurance accruals
to accommodate such claims.
Litigation
Orkin, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, is aggressively defending a class action lawsuit filed in
Hillsborough County, Tampa, Florida. In early April 2002, the Circuit Court of Hillsborough County
certified the class action status of Butland et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. et al. Orkin appealed
this ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeals, which remanded the case back to the trial court
for further findings. In December 2004 the Court issued a new ruling certifying the class action status.
Orkin appealed this ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeals. In June 2006, the Florida
Second District Court of Appeals issued a ruling denying certification of the class. Following the Plaintiffs’
motion for rehearing, the court upheld its prior decision that class certification was improper but also ruled
that the Plaintiffs can return to the trial court and attempt to certify a narrower class. Orkin will vigorously
oppose any effort by the Plaintiffs to do so. In Ernest W. Warren and Dolores G. Warren et al. v. Orkin
Exterminating Company, Inc., et al., pending in the Superior Court of Cobb County, Marietta, Georgia, the
Court ruled in August 2006 certifying the class action against Orkin. Orkin appealed this ruling to the
Georgia Court of Appeals, which in November 2007 denied certification of the class. Plaintiff appealed this
ruling to the Supreme Court of Georgia, which in February 2008 denied Plaintiff’s petition for review.
John Maciel v. Orkin, Inc., et al. (pending in the Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California); Ronald
and Ileana Krzyzanowsky et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc. (pending in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of California); Adam Stauber v. Rollins, Inc. et al. (pending
in the United States District Court for the Central District of California); and Roy Sheppard et al. v. Orkin
Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc. (pending in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Arkansas) is other pending litigation seeking class action certification which to date has not
been scheduled for a class certification hearing. Other lawsuits against Orkin, and in some instances the
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Company, are also being vigorously defended. For further discussion, see Note 8 to the accompanying
financial statements.
Taxes
During the year ended December 31, 2007 a settlement was reached on a federal audit issue which resulted
in the reduction of the liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $1.0 million and will result in future
reductions of the liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $0.9 million over the next two years. The liability
for unrecognized tax benefits was reduced during the year ended December 31, 2007 by $0.4 million for
interest applicable to the settled issue. Filing of tax returns for the year ended December 31, 2006 reduced
the liability for unrecognized tax benefits by an additional $0.2 million during the year ended December 31,
2007. During the year ended December 31, 2007 state tax audits were settled resulting in a reduction to the
liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $1.1 million. Other state initiatives were completed during the
year ended December 31, 2007 resulting in a reduction to the liability for unrecognized tax benefits of
$1.2 million.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Other than the operating leases disclosed in the table below, the Company has no material off balance
sheet arrangements.
The impact that the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007 are expected to have on
our liquidity and cash flow in future periods is as follows:

Contractual obligations (in thousands)
Non-compete agreements
Non-cancelable operating leases
Capital leases
Acquisition notes payable
Unrecognized Tax Positions (1)
Total (2)

Total
$

916
65,325
1,787
229
2,411

$70,668

Payments due by period
Less than
1-3
4-5
1 year
years
years
$

346
23,257
1,186
43
1,350

$26,182

$

570
28,100
601
72
1,061

$30,404

$

—
9,924
—
114

$10,038

More than
5 years
$

—
4,044
—
—

$4,044

(1) These amounts represent expected payments with interest for unrecognized tax benefits as of
December 31, 2007.
(2) Minimum pension funding requirements are not included as such amounts have not been determined.
Critical Accounting Policies
The Company views critical accounting policies to be those policies that are very important to the portrayal
of our financial condition and results of operations, and that require management’s most difficult, complex
or subjective judgments. The circumstances that make these judgments difficult or complex relate to the
need for management to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. We
believe our critical accounting policies to be as follows:
Accrual for Termite Contracts—The Company maintains an accrual for termite claims representing the
estimated costs of reapplications, repairs and associated labor and chemicals, settlements, awards and
other costs relative to termite control services. Factors that may impact future cost include chemical life
expectancy and government regulation. It is significant that the actual number of claims has decreased in
recent years due to changes in the Company’s business practices. However, it is not possible to precisely
predict future significant claims. Positive changes to our business practices include revisions made to our
contracts, more effective treatment methods, more effective termiticides, and expanding training.
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Accrued Insurance—The Company self-insures, up to specified limits, certain risks related to general liability,
workers’ compensation and vehicle liability. The estimated costs of existing and future claims under the
self-insurance program are accrued based upon historical trends as incidents occur, whether reported or
unreported (although actual settlement of the claims may not be made until future periods) and may be
subsequently revised based on developments relating to such claims. The Company contracts an
independent third party actuary on an annual basis to provide the Company an estimated liability based
upon historical claims information. The actuarial study is a major consideration, along with management’s
knowledge of changes in business practices and existing claims compared to current balances. The reserve
is established based on all these factors. Due to the uncertainty associated with the estimation of future
loss and expense payments and inherent limitations of the data, actual developments may vary from the
Company’s projections. This is particularly true since critical assumptions regarding the parameters used to
develop reserve estimates are largely based upon judgment. Therefore, changes in estimates may be
material. Management’s judgment is inherently subjective and a number of factors are outside
management’s knowledge and control. Additionally, historical information is not always an accurate
indication of future events. It should be noted that the number of claims have been decreasing due to the
Company’s proactive risk management to develop and maintain ongoing programs. Initiatives that have
been implemented include pre-employment screening and an annual motor vehicle report required on all
its drivers, post-offer physicals for new employees, and pre-hire, random and post-accident drug testing.
The Company has improved the time required to report a claim by utilizing a ‘‘Red Alert’’ program that
provides serious accident assessment twenty four hours a day and seven days a week and has instituted a
modified duty program that enables employees to go back to work on a limited-duty basis.
Revenue Recognition—The Company’s revenue recognition policies are designed to recognize revenues at the
time services are performed. For certain revenue types, because of the timing of billing and the receipt of
cash versus the timing of performing services, certain accounting estimates are utilized. Residential and
commercial pest control services are primarily recurring in nature on a monthly or bi-monthly basis, while
certain types of commercial customers may receive multiple treatments within a given month. In general,
pest control customers sign an initial one-year contract, and revenues are recognized at the time services
are performed. For pest control customers, the Company offers a discount for those customers who prepay
for a full year of services. The Company defers recognition of these advance payments and recognizes the
revenue as the services are rendered. The Company classifies the discounts related to the advance
payments as a reduction in revenues. Termite baiting revenues are recognized based on the delivery of the
individual units of accounting. At the inception of a new baiting services contract upon quality control
review of the installation, the Company recognizes revenue for the delivery of the monitoring stations,
initial directed liquid termiticide treatment and installation of the monitoring services. The amount
deferred is the fair value of monitoring services to be rendered after the initial service. Fair values are
generally established based on the prices charged when sold separately by the Company. The amount
deferred for the undelivered monitoring element is then recognized as income on a straight-line basis over
the remaining contract term, which results in recognition of revenue in a pattern that approximates the
timing of performing monitoring visits. Baiting renewal revenue is deferred and recognized over the annual
contract period on a straight-line basis that approximates the timing of performing the required monitoring
visits.
Revenue received for traditional termite treatments is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over
the remaining contract term; and, the cost of reinspections, reapplications and repairs and associated labor
and chemicals are expensed as incurred. For outstanding claims, an estimate is made of the costs to be
incurred (including legal costs) based upon current factors and historical information. The performance of
reinspections tends to be close to the contract renewal date and, while reapplications and repairs involve
an insubstantial number of the contracts, these costs are incurred over the contract term. As the revenue is
being deferred, the future cost of reinspections, reapplications and repairs and associated labor and
chemicals applicable to the deferred revenue are expensed as incurred. The Company accrues for noticed
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claims. The costs of providing termite services upon renewal are compared to the expected revenue to be
received and a provision is made for any expected losses.
As the revenue is being deferred, the future cost of reinspections, reapplications and repairs and associated
labor and chemicals applicable to the deferred revenue are expensed as incurred and no longer accrued.
The Company will continue to accrue for noticed claims.
Contingency Accruals—The Company is a party to legal proceedings with respect to matters in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies, the Company estimates and accrues for its liability and costs associated with the litigation.
Estimates and accruals are determined in consultation with outside counsel. Because it is not possible to
accurately predict the ultimate result of the litigation, judgments concerning accruals for liabilities and
costs associated with litigation are inherently uncertain and actual liability may vary from amounts
estimated or accrued. However, in the opinion of management, the outcome of the litigation will not have
a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.
Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
In December 2004, the FASB issued a revision of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (or ‘‘FAS’’)
No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.’’ The revision is referred to as ‘‘FAS 123R—ShareBased Payment’’ (or ‘‘FAS 123R’’), which supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,’’ (or ‘‘APB 25’’) and requires companies to recognize compensation expense, using a fair-value
based method, for costs related to share-based payments including stock options and stock issued under
our employee stock plans. The Company adopted FAS 123R using the modified prospective basis on
January 1, 2006. The Company’s adoption of FAS 123R resulted in compensation expense which had no
affect on diluted net income per share for 2006. Stock-based compensation expense is affected by our stock
price, as well as a number of complex and subjective valuation assumptions and the related tax effect.
These valuation assumptions include, but are not limited to, the volatility of our stock price and employee
stock option exercise behaviors.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88 106, and 132(R).’’ SFAS 158
requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit
post-retirement plans as an asset or a liability in its statement of financial position. The funded status is
measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the benefit obligation (the projected
benefit obligation for pension plans or the accumulated benefit obligation for other post-retirement
benefit plans). An employer is also required to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its
year-end statement of financial position with changes in the funded status recognized through
comprehensive income. SFAS 158 also requires certain disclosures regarding the effects on net periodic
benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of gains or losses, prior service costs
or credits, and the transition asset or obligation. The Company was required to recognize the funded status
of the plan in its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. The Company had previously
recognized the funded status of the plan in prior financial statements. See Note 8—Employee Benefit and
Stock Compensation Plans for additional information related to this plans. The requirement to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the year-end statement of financial position is effective
for the Company’s financial statements beginning with the year ended after December 15, 2008. The
Company currently uses December 31 as the measurement date for the plans.
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Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation
In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, ‘‘Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109’’ (‘‘FIN 48’’), which provides criteria for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. The Company is subject to the
provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, and has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal, state and
foreign filing jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open years in those
jurisdictions. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company has recognized an increase of
$1.7 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for as a decrease to the
January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. As of the adoption date, the Company had gross tax affected
unrecognized tax benefits of $6.1 million. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if
recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is $3.8 million.
On May 2, 2007 the FASB issued FIN 48-1, Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48. The
definition of settlement in FIN 48-1 does not have a material effect on the cumulative effect adjustment as
recorded by the Company upon adoption of FIN 48.
Emerging Issues Task Force
In June 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (‘‘EITF’’) issued Issue 06-11 ‘‘Accounting for Income Tax
Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards’’. The guidance in EITF Issue 06-11 addresses how
an employer should account for the income tax benefits related to dividend or dividend equivalent
payments made to employees holding certain share-based payment awards. Entities are required to
recognize tax benefits realized from dividend or dividend equivalents paid to employees for certain sharebased payment awards as an increase to additional paid-in capital and include such amounts in the pool of
excess tax benefits available to absorb future tax deficiencies on share-based payment awards. EITF Issue
06-11 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15,
2007 (January 1, 2008 for calendar-year entities). Entities should apply the consensus prospectively to
income tax benefits of dividends on equity-classified employee share-based payment awards that are
declared in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. We are currently in the process of evaluating
the effects of the adoption of EITF Issue 06-11 on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows, and
financial position.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 revised, Business Combinations. The objective of this
Statement is to improve the relevance, representational faithfulness, and comparability of the information
that a reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a business combination and its effects.
SFAS 141 revised is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009 and is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, ‘‘Fair Value Measurements.’’ SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial assets and liabilities
on January 1, 2008. The FASB has deferred the implementation of the provision of SFAS 157 relating to
certain non-financial assets and liabilities until January 1, 2009. SFAS 157 is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities
(SFAS 159). SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning after November 15,
2007. SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair
value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. Accordingly, companies would then be
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required to report unrealized gains and losses on these items in earnings at each subsequent reporting
date. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing companies with the opportunity to
mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently.
SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons
between companies that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities.
SFAS 159 became effective for the Company on January 1, 2008 and is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51. The objective of this Statement is to improve the relevance,
comparability, and transparency of the financial information that a reporting entity provides in its
consolidated financial statements by establishing accounting and reporting standards for the
Noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the decosolation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effective for
the Company on January 1, 2009 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements include statements regarding the
Company’s belief that its relationship with vendors and levels of supplies will alleviate the potential
short-term shortage in availability from its suppliers; management’s belief that environmental remediation
costs estimated to be incurred are not material to the Company’s financial condition or operating results;
the outcome of litigation arising in the ordinary course of business and the outcome of other litigation, as
discussed in the Legal Proceedings section and elsewhere, the Company’s expectation to continue its
payment of cash dividends; the Company’s expectation that its Orkin Customer Service Center will
contribute to growth in 2008 and improvement in responding to residential pest control and termite
control leads; the ability of Orkin’s web search agency to make it easier for customers to access Orkin; the
ability of Orkin’s Yellow Pages agency to assist in improving marketing, help find customers and create
more efficiency; Orkin’s expectation to go live at several branches early in the second half of 2008 on its
routing and scheduling management system and schedule for a complete rollout of this system; the
adequacy of the Company’s resources and borrowings to fund operations and obligations; management’s
belief that it will not make any contribution to its pension plan during fiscal 2008 and that any additional
plan contributions will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operation
or liquidity; the Company’s projected 2008 capital expenditures; the impact of the Company’s contractual
obligations; the impact of recent accounting pronouncements; and interest rate risks and foreign exchanges
currency risk on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity. The actual results of
the Company could differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements because of
various risks, timing and uncertainties including, without limitation, the possibility of an adverse ruling
against the Company in pending litigation; general economic conditions; market risk; changes in industry
practices or technologies; the degree of success of the Company’s termite process reforms and pest control
selling and treatment methods; the Company’s ability to identify potential acquisitions; climate and
weather trends; competitive factors and pricing practices; potential increases in labor costs; and changes in
various government laws and regulations, including environmental regulations. All of the foregoing risks
and uncertainties are beyond the ability of the Company to control, and in many cases the Company
cannot predict the risks and uncertainties that could cause its actual results to differ materially from those
indicated by the forward-looking statements.
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Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Market Risk
The Company maintains an investment portfolio subject to short-term interest rate risk exposure. The
Company is also subject to interest rate risk exposure through borrowings on its $70.0 million credit
facility. Due to the absence of such borrowings as of December 31, 2007, this risk was not significant in
2007 and is not expected to have a material effect upon the Company’s results of operations or financial
position going forward. However, the Company does maintain approximately $38.3 million in Letters of
Credit. The Company is also exposed to market risks arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company believes that this foreign exchange rate risk will not have a material effect upon the Company’s
results of operations or financial position going forward.
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Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
At December 31, (in thousands except share information)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables, short-term, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $5,351 and $6,132, respectively
Materials and supplies
Deferred income taxes, net
Other current assets

2007

$

LIABILITIES
Capital leases
Accounts payable
Accrued insurance
Accrued compensation and related liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accrual for termite contracts
Other current liabilities

71,280

$

63,344

54,457
8,846
17,162
8,495

52,693
8,401
19,435
7,200

160,240
77,370
126,684
63,056
9,232
7,576

151,073
72,141
125,161
67,761
9,294
14,069

8,409
16,624
6,037

8,796
—
4,880

$ 475,228

$ 453,175

$

$

Total Current Assets
Equipment and property, net
Goodwill
Customer contracts
Other intangible assets, net
Deferred income taxes
Trade receivables, long-term, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$1,317 and $1,096, respectively
Prepaid pension
Other assets
Total Assets

2006

1,186
19,140
13,505
45,605
81,678
6,320
20,267

498
16,309
14,310
47,305
79,441
8,526
18,817

Total current liabilities
Capital leases, less current portion
Accrued insurance, less current portion
Accrual for termite contracts, less current portion
Accrued pension
Long-term accrued liabilities

187,701
601
23,387
11,680
—
18,306

185,206
124
23,635
11,675
6,946
14,130

Total Liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies

241,675

241,716

—

—

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, without par value; 500,000 authorized, zero shares issued
Common stock, par value $1 per share; 170,000,000 shares authorized,
100,635,596 and 106,183,677 shares issued, respectively
Paid in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, par value $1 per share; zero shares at December 31, 2007
and 4,347,111 shares at December 31, 2006

100,636
15,184
121,783
(4,050)
—

106,184
11,737
115,669
(17,784)
(4,347)

Total Stockholders’ Equity

$ 233,553

$ 211,459

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

$ 475,228

$ 453,175

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, (in thousands except per share data)
REVENUES
Customer services

2007

2006

2005

$ 894,920

$ 858,878

$ 802,417

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of services provided
Depreciation and amortization
Sales, general and administrative
Pension curtailment
Gain on sales of assets
Interest income

468,665
27,068
296,615
—
(52)
(2,289)

457,869
26,860
280,578
—
(81)
(1,507)

437,160
24,280
259,763
(4,176)
(982)
(1,583)

790,007

763,719

714,462

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

104,913

95,159

87,955

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
Current
Deferred

39,149
1,033

31,343
6,007

31,529
3,653

40,182

37,350

35,182

NET INCOME

$

64,731

$

57,809

$

52,773

INCOME PER SHARE – BASIC

$

0.65

$

0.57

$

0.52

INCOME PER SHARE – DILUTED

$

0.64

$

0.56

$

0.51

Weighted average shares outstanding – basic
Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted
DIVIDENDS PAID PER SHARE

100,299
101,409
$
0.20

100,747
103,314
$
0.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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101,847
104,658
$
0.13

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Common Stock
(In thousands)

Shares

Amount

Balance at December 31, 2004
Net Income
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax
Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments
NSO Stock Options

103,590

$103,590

Amount

PaidIn-Capital

Treasury
PaidIn-Capital

$ (834)

$ 7,419

$ 3,240

Treasury
Stock

(834)

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

(7,198)
45,575

68
510
146
805

68
510
146
805

105,119

$105,119

(1,438)
90
(164)
(756)

(1,438)
90
(164)
(756)

$(3,475)

$ 73,675
52,773

$167,549
52,773

(3,102)

$(3,102)

(8,181)
1,114
(131)
(7,198)
(13,714)
(23,446)

10
—
3,490
2,523
1,022
$14,464

—
(2,406)

$

—

$(23,264)

$(5,881)

57,809

86
246
(5)

$ 89,615
57,809

5,717
(237)
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5,480

Comprehensive Income

(13,714)
(30,233)
2,199
—
—
1,225
3,328
1,022
$176,951
57,809
5,717
(237)

5,480

63,289

Cash Dividends
Common Stock Purchased (1)
Issuance of 401(k) Company Match
FAS 123r Adoption
Three-for-Two Stock Split – 2007
Stock Compensation
Common Stock Options Exercised & Other (2)
Balance at December 31, 2006
Net Income
Cumulative Effect Adjustment of adoption of FIN 48
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax
Unrealized Loss on Investments
Pension Liability Adjustment
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments

(1,007)
177

(1,007)
177

355
281
429

355
281
429

(415)

(415)

106,184

$106,184

(4,347)

$(4,347)

(17,025)
(14,790)
(5,881)
—
2,755
399
$11,737

5,881
—

$

—

$(17,784)

—

60

$115,669
64,731
(1,676)

3
11,029
2,702
13,734

Comprehensive Income

78,465

Cash Dividends
Common Stock Purchased (1)
Common Stock Retired
Three-for-Two Stock Split – 2007
Stock Compensation
Common Stock Options Exercised (2)
Excess Tax Benefit on Non-Qualified Stock Options

$

64,731

Other Comprehensive Income

(1)
(2)

Total

$(16,066)

(5,349)
2,109

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at December 31, 2007

Retained
Earnings

(8,181)
1,114
(131)

Comprehensive Income

Balance at December 31, 2005
Net Income
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax
Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments

Unearned
Compensation

52,773

Other Comprehensive Income
Cash Dividends
Common Stock Purchased (1)
Issuance of 401(k) Company Match
Three-for-Two Stock Split – 2005
Three-for-Two Stock Split – 2007
Unearned Compensation
Common Stock Options Exercised (2)
Excess Tax Benefit on Non-Qualified Stock Options

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

(4,595)
(1,736)
215
568
100,636

(4,595)
(1,736)
215
568

(1,697)
4,595
1,449

$100,636

13,734
(20,332)
(36,866)

(1,697)
4,595
1,449

$

—

257

$15,184

$

—

$211,459
64,731
(1,676)
3
11,029
2,702

2,974
(2,564)
3,037
—

(17,025)
(15,797)
177
—
—
3,036
828

$ (4,050)

Charges to Retained Earnings are from purchases of the Company’s Common Stock.
Common Stock Options Exercised are net of employee stock buybacks

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

$

—

$121,783

(20,332)
(38,563)
—
(30)
3,189
(1,996)
3,037
$233,553

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, (in thousands)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Pension curtailment gain
Provision for deferred income taxes
Stock based compensation expense
Gain on sales of assets
Excess tax benefits from share-based payments
Other, net
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables
Materials and supplies
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Accrued insurance
Accrual for termite contracts
Accrued pension
Long-term accrued liabilities

2007

2006

2005

$ 64,731

$ 57,809

$ 52,773

27,068
—
1,033
3,189
(52)
(3,037)
(232)

26,860
—
6,007
2,987
(81)
—
(544)

24,280
(4,176)
3,653
1,244
(982)
—
(2,834)

59
(26)
(1,205)
(383)
22
1,731
(1,053)
(2,201)
(5,000)
4,118

(3,784)
681
1,914
301
5,476
(550)
1,344
(3,000)
(5,000)
(5,219)

4,291
2,385
715
353
4,388
(31)
(1,029)
(2,111)
(5,000)
(1,169)

Net cash provided by operating activities

88,762

85,201

76,750

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment and property
Acquisitions/dispositions of companies, net
Cash from sales of franchises
Proceeds from sales of assets

(16,244)
(6,801)
204
87

(18,729)
(10,087)
707
128

(25,541)
(27,239)
639
754

(22,754)

(27,981)

(51,387)

(41,971)
(20,332)
1,384
(1,916)
3,037
—

(19,452)
(17,025)
1,086
(763)
—
(235)

(30,308)
(13,714)
3,315
—
—
558

(59,798)

(36,389)

(40,149)

Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Common stock purchased
Dividends paid
Common stock options exercised
Principal payments on capital lease obligations
Excess tax benefits from share-based payments
Other
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

1,726

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

(552)

7,936
63,344

20,279
43,065

$ 71,280

$ 63,344

$ 43,065

$
118
$ 40,129

$
57
$ 31,258

$
162
$ 30,084

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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1,114
(13,672)
56,737

Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Items
Pension—Non-cash (increases) decreases in the minimum pension liability which were (charged) credited
to other comprehensive income/(loss) were $19.9 million $9.7 million, and $(13.8) million in 2007, 2006,
and 2005, respectively.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, Rollins, Inc. and Subsidiaries
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business Description—Rollins, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’) was originally incorporated in 1948 under the laws of
the state of Delaware as Rollins Broadcasting, Inc.
The Company is a national service company with headquarters located in Atlanta, Georgia, providing pest
and termite control services through its wholly-owned subsidiaries to both residential and commercial
customers in North America with domestic franchises and international franchises in Mexico, Central
America, the Caribbean, the Middle East and Asia.
Orkin, Inc. (‘‘Orkin’’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company founded in 1901, is one of the world’s
largest pest and termite control companies. It provides customized services from over 400 locations to
approximately 1.7 million customers. Orkin serves customers in the United States, Canada, Mexico,
Central America, the Caribbean, the Middle East and Asia providing essential pest control services and
protection against termite damage, rodents and insects to homes and businesses, including hotels, food
service establishments, food manufacturers, retailers and transportation companies. Orkin operates under
the Orkin, and PCO Services, Inc. trademarks and the AcuridSM service mark. The Orkin brand name
makes Orkin the most recognized pest and termite company throughout the country.
PCO Services, Inc., a subsidiary of Orkin was acquired by Orkin in 1999. PCO Services is the largest pest
control service provider in Canada. The PCO Services brand name provides similar brand recognition
throughout Canada.
Western Pest Services (‘‘Western’’), another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company founded in 1928 was
acquired by Rollins, Inc. in 2004. Western is primarily a commercial pest control service company and its
business compliments most of the services Orkin offers in the northeastern United States.
The Industrial Fumigant Company (‘‘IFC’’), another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company was
acquired by Rollins, Inc. in 2005. IFC is a leading provider of Pest Management and Sanitation services
and products to the food and commodity industries.
The Company has only one reportable segment, its pest and termite control business. Revenue, operating
profit and identifiable assets for this segment, includes the United States, Canada, Mexico, Central
America, the Caribbean, the Middle East and Asia. The Company’s results of operations and its financial
condition are not reliant upon any single customer or a few customers or the Company’s foreign
operations.
Principles of Consolidation—The Company’s policy is to consolidate all subsidiaries, investees or other
entities where it has voting control, is subject to a majority of the risk of loss or is entitled to receive a
majority of residual returns. The Company does not have any interest in other investees, joint ventures, or
other entities that require consolidation.
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and subsidiaries owned by the
Company. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Estimates Used in the Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements—The preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
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America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
accompanying notes and financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Revenues—The Company’s revenue recognition policies are designed to recognize revenues at the time
services are performed. For certain revenue types, because of the timing of billing and the receipt of cash
versus the timing of performing services, certain accounting estimates are utilized. Residential and
commercial pest control services are primarily recurring in nature on a monthly or bi-monthly basis, while
certain types of commercial customers may receive multiple treatments within a given month. In general,
pest control customers sign an initial one-year contract, and revenues are recognized at the time services
are performed. For pest control customers, the Company offers a discount for those customers who prepay
for a full year of services. The Company defers recognition of these advance payments and recognizes the
revenue as the services are rendered. The Company classifies the discounts related to the advance
payments as a reduction in revenues. Termite baiting revenues are recognized based on the delivery of the
individual units of accounting. At the inception of a new baiting services contract upon quality control
review of the installation, the Company recognizes revenue for the delivery of the monitoring stations,
initial directed liquid termiticide treatment and installation of the monitoring services. The amount
deferred is the fair value of monitoring services to be rendered after the initial service. Fair values are
generally established based on the prices charged when sold separately by the Company. The amount
deferred for the undelivered monitoring element is then recognized as income on a straight-line basis over
the remaining contract term, which results in recognition of revenue in a pattern that approximates the
timing of performing monitoring visits. Baiting renewal revenue is deferred and recognized over the annual
contract period on a straight-line basis that approximates the timing of performing the required monitoring
visits.
Revenue received for traditional termite treatments is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over
the remaining contract term; and, the cost of reinspections, reapplications and repairs and associated labor
and chemicals are expensed as incurred. For outstanding claims, an estimate is made of the costs to be
incurred (including legal costs) based upon current factors and historical information. The performance of
reinspections tends to be close to the contract renewal date and, while reapplications and repairs involve
an insubstantial number of the contracts, these costs are incurred over the contract term. As the revenue is
being deferred, the future cost of reinspections, reapplications and repairs and associated labor and
chemicals applicable to the deferred revenue are expensed as incurred. The Company accrues for noticed
claims. The costs of providing termite services upon renewal are compared to the expected revenue to be
received and a provision is made for any expected losses.
As the revenue is being deferred, the future cost of reinspections, reapplications and repairs and associated
labor and chemicals applicable to the deferred revenue are expensed as incurred and no longer accrued.
The Company will continue to accrue for noticed claims.
All revenues are reported net of sales taxes.
The Company’s foreign operations accounted for approximately 8% of total revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and approximately 7% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.
Interest income on installment receivables is accrued monthly based on actual loan balances and stated
interest rates. Recognition of initial franchise fee revenues occurs when all material services or conditions
relating to a new agreement have been substantially performed or satisfied by the Company. Initial
franchise fees are treated as unearned revenue in the Statement of Financial Position until such time.
Royalties from Orkin franchises are accrued and recognized as revenues as earned on a monthly basis.
Gains on sales of pest control customer accounts to franchises are recognized at the time of sale and when
collection is reasonably assured.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the
expected collectibility of accounts receivable. Management uses historical collection results as well as
accounts receivable aging in order to determine the expected collectibility of accounts receivable.
Advertising—Advertising costs are charged to expense during the year in which they are incurred.
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Advertising

$ 37,699

$ 35,977

$ 34,130

Cash and Cash Equivalents—The Company considers all investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Short-term investments, included in cash and cash equivalents, are
stated at cost, which approximates fair market value.
(in thousands)

2007

Cash held in foreign bank accounts

At December 31,
2006

$ 14,103

$

9,487

2005
$

7,090

Marketable Securities—From time to time, the Company maintains investments held by several large,
well-capitalized financial institutions. The Company’s investment policy does not allow investment in any
securities rated less than ‘‘investment grade’’ by national rating services. The Company’s marketable
securities generally consist of United States government, corporate and municipal debt securities.
Management determines the appropriate classification of debt securities at the time of purchase and
re-evaluates such designations as of each balance sheet date. Debt securities are classified as
available-for-sale because the Company does not have the intent to hold the securities to maturity.
Available-for-sale securities are stated at their fair values, with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses and declines in value
judged to be other than temporary on available-for-sale securities are included in interest income.
The Company had no Marketable Securities at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
Materials and Supplies—Materials and supplies are recorded at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or
market.
Income Taxes—The Company provides for income taxes based on Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, which requires recognition of deferred tax
liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the
consolidated financial statements or tax returns. The Company provides an allowance for deferred tax
assets when it is determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be utilized.
The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax
expense.
Equipment and Property—Depreciation and amortization, which includes the amortization of assets recorded
under capital leases, are provided principally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets. Annual provisions for depreciation are computed using the following asset lives: buildings,
ten to forty years; and furniture, fixtures, and operating equipment, two to ten years. Expenditures for
additions, major renewals and betterments are capitalized and expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are expensed as incurred. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated
depreciation and amortization are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal with the resulting
gain or loss credited or charged to income. The annual provisions for depreciation, below, have been
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reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the line item entitled Depreciation and
Amortization:

(in thousands)

Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

Depreciation

$13,677

$12,976

$11,530

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—In accordance with SFAS No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets’’, the Company classifies intangible assets into three categories: (1) intangible assets with definite
lives subject to amortization; (2) intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization; and
(3) goodwill. The Company does not amortize intangible assets with indefinite lives or goodwill. Goodwill
and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate the assets might be impaired. Such conditions may include an
economic downturn or a change in the assessment of future operations. The Company performs
impairment tests of goodwill at the company level. Such impairment tests for goodwill include comparing
the fair value of the appropriate reporting unit (the Company) with its carrying value. The Company
performs impairment tests for indefinite-lived intangible assets by comparing the fair value of each
indefinite-lived intangible asset unit to its carrying value. The Company recognizes an impairment charge if
the asset’s carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company completed its annual impairment
analyses as of September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005. Based upon the results of these analyses, the Company
has concluded that no impairment of its goodwill or other intangible assets was indicated.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets—In accordance with SFAS 144, ‘‘Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets’’, the Company’s long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and intangible
assets with definite lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be
held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Based upon the results of these analyses,
the Company has concluded that no impairment of its long-lived assets was indicated.
Insurance—The Company self-insures, up to specified limits, certain risks related to general liability,
workers’ compensation and vehicle liability. The estimated costs of existing and future claims under the
self-insurance program are accrued based upon historical trends as incidents occur, whether reported or
unreported (although actual settlement of the claims may not be made until future periods) and may be
subsequently revised based on developments relating to such claims. The Company contracts an
independent third party actuary on an annual basis to provide the Company an estimated liability based
upon historical claims information. The actuarial study is a major consideration, along with management’s
knowledge of changes in business practice and existing claims compared to current balances. The reserve is
established based on all these factors. Management’s judgment is inherently subjective and a number of
factors are outside management’s knowledge and control. Additionally, historical information is not always
an accurate indication of future events.
Accrual for Termite Contracts—The Company maintains an accrual for termite claims representing the
estimated costs of reapplications, repairs and associated labor and chemicals, settlements, awards and
other costs relative to termite control services. Factors that may impact future cost include termiticide life
expectancy and government regulation. It is significant that the actual number of claims has decreased in
recent years due to changes in the Company’s business practices. However, it is not possible to precisely
predict future significant claims. Positive changes to our business practices include revisions made to our
contracts, more effective treatment methods, more effective termiticides and expanded training.
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Contingency Accruals—The Company is a party to legal proceedings with respect to matters in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies, the Company estimates and accrues for its liability and costs associated with the litigation.
Estimates and accruals are determined in consultation with outside counsel. It is not possible to accurately
predict the ultimate result of the litigation. However, in the opinion of management, the outcome of the
litigation will not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of
operations.
Treasury Shares—During the year ended December 31, 2007 the Company retired all of its existing treasury
shares, increasing the number of unissued but authorized shares, and began to retire common shares as
they are repurchased. During 2007, 2.4 million shares (post the Company’s three-for-two stock split
effective December 31, 2007) were repurchased for $38.6 million. During 2006, 1.5 million (post split)
shares were repurchased for $19.4 million. During 2005, 2.6 million (post split) shares were repurchased
for $30.2 million.
Earnings Per Share—In accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share (‘‘EPS’’), the Company presents
basic EPS and diluted EPS. Basic EPS is computed on the basis of weighted-average shares outstanding.
Diluted EPS is computed on the basis of weighted-average shares outstanding plus common stock options
outstanding during the year, which, if exercised, would have a dilutive effect on EPS. Prior basic and
diluted EPS for all years have been restated for the stock split effective December 10, 2007.
A reconciliation of the number of weighted-average shares used in computing basic and diluted EPS is as
follows:
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands, except per share data)
Basic and diluted earnings available to stockholders (numerator):
Shares (denominator):
Weighted-average shares outstanding – Basic
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee Stock Options
Weighted-average shares outstanding – Diluted
Per share amounts:
Basic income per common share
Diluted income per common share

$ 64,731

$ 57,809

$ 52,773

100,299

100,747

101,847

1,110

2,567

2,811

101,409

103,314

104,658

$
$

0.65
0.64

$
$

0.57
0.56

$
$

0.52
0.51

Translation of Foreign Currencies—Assets and liabilities reported in functional currencies other than U.S.
dollars are translated into U.S. dollars at the year-end rate of exchange. Revenues and expenses are
translated at the weighted-average exchange rates for the year. The resulting translation adjustments are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income. Gains or losses from foreign currency transactions,
such as those resulting from the settlement of receivables or payables, denominated in foreign currency are
included in the earnings of the current period.
Stock-Based Compensation—The Company adopted FAS 123R as of January 1, 2006. Through
December 31, 2005, the Company has followed APB 25 to account for employee stock options. Under
APB 25, the intrinsic value method of accounting, no compensation expense is recognized because the
exercise price of the employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant. The Company applied FAS 123 for disclosure purposes only, and recognized compensation expense
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award.
In order to estimate the fair value of stock options, the Company used the Black-Scholes option valuation
model, which was developed for use in estimating the fair value of publicly traded options which have no
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vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions and these assumptions can vary over time.
The following proforma net income and earnings per share (or ‘‘EPS’’) for 2005 was determined as if the
Company had accounted for employee stock options and stock issued under its employee stock plans using
the fair value method prescribed by FAS 123. The 2007 and 2006 actuals are presented for comparative
purposes only.
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005
as reported
as reported pro-forma

(in thousands, except per share data)
Net income, as reported
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects

$ 64,731

$ 57,809

—

—

Pro forma net income

$ 64,731

$ 57,809

$ 52,089

Income per share:
Basic – as reported
Basic – pro forma

$
$

0.65
—

$
$

0.57
—

$
$

0.52
0.51

$
$

0.64
—

$
$

0.56
—

$
$

0.51
0.50

Diluted – as reported
Diluted – pro forma

$ 52,773

(684)

The Company did not grant any stock options during 2007, 2006 or 2005.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)—Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) results from foreign currency
translations, minimum pension liability adjustments, and unrealized loss on marketable securities.
Franchising Program—Orkin had 58 franchises as of December 31, 2007, including international franchises
in Mexico, established in 2000, Panama, established in 2003, and Costa Rica, established in 2006, along
with Honduras, the United Arab Emirates, the Dominican Republic and South Korea all of which were
established in 2007. Subsequently, the Company established two new international franchises in January
2008, one in Saudi Arabia and one in Qatar. Transactions with franchises involve sales of customer
contracts to establish new franchises, initial franchise fees and royalties. The customer contracts and initial
franchise fees are typically sold for a combination of cash and notes due over periods ranging up to 5 years.
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Notes receivable from Franchises

$

4,006

$

5,187

$

5,505

The Company recognizes gains from the sale of customer contracts at the time they are sold to franchises
and collection on the notes is reasonably assured.
The Company recognized an overall loss for the sale of customer contracts for the year ended
December 31, 2007 due to customer adjustments. These amounts are included as revenues in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Sale of customer contracts (gain)/loss

$

48

45

$ (1,036) $ (1,465)

Initial domestic franchise fees are deferred for the duration of the initial contract period and are included
as unearned revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Deferred franchise fees

$

2,078

$

2,165

$

1,971

Royalties from franchises are accrued and recognized as revenues as earned on a monthly basis.
Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Revenue from franchises

$

2,704

$

2,273

$

2,006

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss relating to the franchises aggregated $1.9 million, $3.0 million,
and $3.5 million at December 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments, trade and notes receivables, accounts payable and other short-term
liabilities. The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values.
Three-for-Two Stock Split—The Board of Directors, at its quarterly meeting on October 23, 2007, authorized a
three-for-two stock split by the issuance on December 10, 2007 of one additional common share for each
two common shares held of record at November 12, 2007. Accordingly, the par value for additional shares
issued was adjusted to common stock, and fractional shares resulting from the stock split were settled in
cash. All share and per share data appearing in the consolidated financial statements and related notes
have been retroactively adjusted for this stock split.
The Board of Directors, at its quarterly meeting on January 25, 2005, authorized a three-for-two stock split
by the issuance on March 10, 2005 of one additional common share for each two common shares held of
record at February 10, 2005. The share and per share data appearing in the consolidated financial
statements and related are as stated for this stock split.
Reclassifications—Certain amounts for previous years have been reclassified to conform to the 2007
consolidated financial statement presentation.
New Accounting Standards
Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
In December 2004, the FASB issued a revision of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (or ‘‘FAS’’)
No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.’’ The revision is referred to as ‘‘FAS 123R—ShareBased Payment’’ (or ‘‘FAS 123R’’), which supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,’’ (or ‘‘APB 25’’) and requires companies to recognize compensation expense, using a fair-value
based method, for costs related to share-based payments including stock options and stock issued under
our employee stock plans. The Company adopted FAS 123R using the modified prospective basis on
January 1, 2006. The Company’s adoption of FAS 123R resulted in compensation expense which had no
affect on diluted net income per share for 2006. Stock-based compensation expense is affected by our stock
price, as well as a number of complex and subjective valuation assumptions and the related tax effect.
These valuation assumptions include, but are not limited to, the volatility of our stock price and employee
stock option exercise behaviors.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88 106, and 132(R).’’ SFAS 158
requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit
post-retirement plans as an asset or a liability in its statement of financial position. The funded status is
measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the benefit obligation (the projected
benefit obligation for pension plans or the accumulated benefit obligation for other post-retirement
benefit plans). An employer is also required to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its
year-end statement of financial position with changes in the funded status recognized through
comprehensive income. SFAS 158 also requires certain disclosures regarding the effects on net periodic
benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of gains or losses, prior service costs
or credits, and the transition asset or obligation. The Company was required to recognize the funded status
of the plan in its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. The Company had previously
recognized the funded status of the plan in prior financial statements. See Note 8 — Employee Benefit and
Stock Compensation Plans for additional information related to this plans. The requirement to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the year-end statement of financial position is effective
for the Company’s financial statements beginning with the year ended after December 15, 2008.
The Company currently uses December 31 as the measurement date for the plans.
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation
In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, ‘‘Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109’’ (‘‘FIN 48’’), which provides criteria for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. The Company is subject to the
provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, and has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal, state and
foreign filing jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open years in those
jurisdictions. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company has recognized an increase of
$1.7 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for as a decrease to the
January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. As of the adoption date, the Company had gross tax affected
unrecognized tax benefits of $6.1 million. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if
recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is $3.8 million.
On May 2, 2007 the FASB issued FIN 48-1, Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48.
The definition of settlement in FIN 48-1 does not have a material effect on the cumulative effect
adjustment as recorded by the Company upon adoption of FIN 48.
Emerging Issues Task Force
In June 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (‘‘EITF’’) issued Issue 06-11 ‘‘Accounting for Income Tax
Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards’’. The guidance in EITF Issue 06-11 addresses how
an employer should account for the income tax benefits related to dividend or dividend equivalent
payments made to employees holding certain share-based payment awards. Entities are required to
recognize tax benefits realized from dividend or dividend equivalents paid to employees for certain sharebased payment awards as an increase to additional paid-in capital and include such amounts in the pool of
excess tax benefits available to absorb future tax deficiencies on share-based payment awards. EITF Issue
06-11 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for calendar-year entities). Entities should apply the consensus
prospectively to income tax benefits of dividends on equity-classified employee share-based payment
awards that are declared in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. We are currently in the process
of evaluating the effects of the adoption of EITF Issue 06-11 on our consolidated results of operations,
cash flows, and financial position.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 revised, Business Combinations. The objective of this
Statement is to improve the relevance, representational faithfulness, and comparability of the information
that a reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a business combination and its effects.
SFAS 141 revised is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009 and is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, ‘‘Fair Value Measurements.’’ SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial assets and liabilities
on January 1, 2008. The FASB has deferred the implementation of the provision of SFAS 157 relating to
certain non-financial assets and liabilities until January 1, 2009. SFAS 157 is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities
(SFAS 159). SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning after
November 15, 2007. SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and
liabilities at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. Accordingly, companies
would then be required to report unrealized gains and losses on these items in earnings at each subsequent
reporting date. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing companies with the
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently. SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate
comparisons between companies that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets
and liabilities. SFAS 159 became effective for the Company on January 1, 2008 and is not expected to have
a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51. The objective of this Statement is to improve the relevance,
comparability, and transparency of the financial information that a reporting entity provides in its
consolidated financial statements by establishing accounting and reporting standards for the
Noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the decosolation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effective for
the Company on January 1, 2009 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
2.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Allowance for Doubtful Accounts is principally calculated based on the application of estimated loss
percentages to delinquency aging totals, based on contractual terms, for the various categories of
receivables. Bad debt write-offs occur according to Company policies that are specific to pest control,
commercial and termite accounts.
Years ended
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)
Gross Trade Receivables
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

$ 69,534 $ 68,717
(6,668)
(7,228)

Net Trade Receivables

$ 62,866

$ 61,489

Trade receivables include installment receivable amounts which are due subsequent to one year from the
balance sheet dates. Trade receivables also include note receivables due from franchises. At any given time,
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the Company may have immaterial amounts due from related parties, which are invoiced and settled on a
regular basis. The carrying amount of notes receivable approximates fair value as the interest rates
approximate market rates for these types of contracts.
Years ended
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)
Installment Receivables, net
Notes Receivables from Franchises
Related Party Receivables
3.

$

8,409
4,006
154

$

8,796
5,187
116

EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTY

Equipment and property are presented at cost less accumulated depreciation and are detailed as follows:
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)
Buildings
Operating Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Computer Equipment and Systems

$ 35,396
64,337
8,888
38,315

$ 30,367
55,291
8,058
35,536

Less – Accumulated Depreciation

146,936
90,376

129,252
77,868

56,560
20,810

51,384
20,757

$ 77,370

$ 72,141

Land
Net property, plant and equipment

Included in Equipment and property are fixed assets held in foreign countries of $3.6 million, net for the
year ended December 31, 2007 and $1.6 million, net for the year ended December 31, 2006.
4.

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets of businesses
acquired. The carrying amount of goodwill was $126.7 million as of December 31, 2007 and $125.2 million
as of December 31, 2006. The carrying amount of goodwill in foreign countries was $9.6 million as of
December 31, 2007 and $8.1 million as of December 31, 2006
On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
As of January 1, 2002, amortization of goodwill and trademarks was terminated, and instead the assets are
subject to periodic testing for impairment. The Company completed its annual impairment analyses as of
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005. Based upon the results of these analyses, the Company has concluded
that no impairment of its goodwill or trademarks has occurred.
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5.

CUSTOMER CONTRACTS

Customer contracts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of the agreements, as
straight-line best approximates the ratio that current revenues bear to the total of current and anticipated
revenues, based on the estimated lives of the assets. In accordance with Statement 142, the expected lives
of customer contracts were reviewed, and it was determined that customer contracts should be amortized
over a life of 8 to 121⁄2 years dependent upon customer type. The carrying amount and accumulated
amortization for customer contracts were as follows:
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)
Customer contracts
Less: Accumulated amortization

$128,895 $118,944
(65,839) (51,183)

Customer contracts, net

$ 63,056

67,761

The carrying amount of customer contracts in foreign countries was $7.1 million as of December 31, 2007
and $6.7 million as of December 31, 2006.
Total intangible amortization expense was approximately $13.4 million in 2007, $13.9 million in 2006 and
$12.8 million in 2005. Estimated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as
follows:
(in thousands)
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
6.

$13,172
$11,968
$ 9,287
$ 8,999
$ 7,678

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s income tax provision consisted of the following:

(in thousands)

2007

Current:
Federal
State
Foreign
Deferred:
Federal
State
Foreign
Total income tax provision
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December 31,
2006
2005

$32,066
4,613
2,470

$27,537
2,579
1,227

$26,973
2,998
1,558

524
495
14

2,864
2,984
159

1,146
2,239
268

$40,182

$37,350

$35,182

The primary factors causing income tax expense to be different than the federal statutory rate for 2007,
2006 and 2005 are as follows:
December 31,
2007
2006
2005

(in thousands)
Income tax at statutory rate
State income tax expense (net of federal benefit)
Foreign tax expense
Other
Total income tax provision

$36,720 $33,306
3,765
3,161
940
446
(1,243)
437

$30,784
3,404
800
194

$40,182

$35,182

$37,350

The Provision for Income Taxes resulted in an effective tax rate of 38.3% on Income Before Income Taxes
for the year ended December 31, 2007. For 2006 the effective tax rate was 39.25% and for 2005 the
effective tax rate was 40.0%. The effective income tax rate differs from the annual federal statutory tax rate
primarily because of state and foreign income taxes. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company paid
income taxes of $40.1 million, $31.3 million and $30.1 million, respectively, net of refunds.
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of the temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as
follows:
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Termite Accrual
Insurance and Contingencies
Unearned Revenues
Compensation and Benefits
Net Pension Liability
State Operating Loss Carryforwards
Other
Valuation allowance

$ 5,844 $ 6,611
16,683
15,853
11,910
11,258
3,411
3,434
—
2,799
12,652
10,197
4,183
4,826
(11,493)
(8,563)

Total Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Net Pension Asset
Foreign Currency Translation
Other

$ 43,190

$ 46,415

$ (7,310) $(10,049)
(6,450)
—
(3,682)
(1,922)
(1,010)
(940)

Total Deferred tax Liabilities

$(18,452) $(12,911)

Net Deferred Tax Assets

$ 24,738
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$ 33,504

Analysis of the valuation allowance;
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)
Valuation allowance at beginning of year
Increase in valuation allowance

$ 8,563
2,930

$6,279
2,284

Valuation allowance at end of year

$11,493

$8,563

As of December 31, 2007, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax purposes
of approximately $320 million, which will be available to offset future state taxable income. If not used,
these carryforwards will expire between 2008 and 2025. Management believes that it is unlikely to be able
to utilize approximately $295 million of these net operating losses before they expire and has included a
valuation allowance for the effect of these unrealizable operating loss carryforwards. The valuation
allowance increased by $2.9 million due to additional losses generated in the current year.
Earnings from continuing operations before income tax includes foreign income of $4.4 million in 2007,
$2.7 million in 2006 and $2.2 million in 2005. The company intends to reinvest indefinitely the
undistributed earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries. As of December, 2007, the Company had
approximately $11.6 million of earnings from those international subsidiaries that had not been remitted to
the United States. Should these earnings be distributed in the form of dividends or alternative means, the
distribution would be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the statutory rate of 35 percent, less foreign tax
credits applicable to such distributions.
In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, ‘‘Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109’’ (‘‘FIN 48’’), which provides criteria for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. The Company adopted the provisions
of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company has recognized
an increase of $1.68 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for as a
decrease to the January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. The total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is $1.9 million. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
(in thousands)
Balance at January 1, 2007
Additions based on tax positions related to current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Settlements
Expiration of statute of limitation

$ 6,085
142
1,323
(896)
(2,926)
(14)

Balance at December 31, 2007

$ 3,712

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to United States federal income tax as well as income tax of
multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. In many cases these uncertain tax positions are related to tax years
that remain subject to examination by the relevant taxing authorities. The tax returns for 2002 and 2003 are
currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service. In addition, the Company has subsidiaries in
various state jurisdictions that are currently under audit for years ranging from 1996 through 2005. With
few exceptions, we are no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or non-United States, income tax
examinations for years prior to 2002.
It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will increase or decrease in the next
twelve months. These changes may be the result of settlement of ongoing federal and state audits. It is
expected that other federal audit issues will be settled in the next twelve months resulting in a reduction of
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the liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $1.0 million, including interest. It is also expected that certain
state audits will be completed in the next 12 months resulting in a reduction of the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits of $0.3 million. None of the reductions in the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits discussed above will affect the effective tax rate.
The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax
expense. Accrued interest and penalties were $1.1 million and $0.8 million as of January 1, 2007 and
December 31, 2007, respectively. During 2007 the Company recognized interest and penalties of
$0.2 million.
7.

ACCRUAL FOR TERMITE CONTRACTS

In accordance with SFAS No. 5, ‘‘Accounting for Contingencies,’’ the Company maintains an accrual for
termite claims representing the estimated costs of reapplications, repairs and associated labor and
chemicals, settlements, awards and other costs relative to termite control services. Factors that may impact
future cost include termiticide life expectancy and government regulation.
A reconciliation of changes in the accrual for termite contracts for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 is as follows:
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)

8.

Beginning balance
Current year provision
Settlements, claims, and expenditures

$ 20,201 $ 23,200
10,169
15,980
(12,370) (18,979)

Ending balance

$ 18,000

$ 20,201

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases vehicles and equipment under operating and capital leases which are accounted for
accordingly. The capital leases contractually expire at various dates through 2011. The assets and liabilities
acquired under capital leases are recorded at the lower of fair market value or the present value of future
lease payments, and are depreciated over the actual contract term. Depreciation of assets under capital
leases is included in depreciation expense for 2007 and 2006.
Following is a summary of property held under capital leases:
(in thousands)

2007

2006

Vehicles
Additions
Expirations & Disposals
Extensions
Accumulated Depreciation

$ 4,904 $2,234
559
92
(979)
(898)
—
7
(2,888)
(819)

Total property held under capital leases

$ 1,596

$ 616

The remainder of the leases is accounted for as operating leases expiring at various dates through 2017:

(in thousands)

Years ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

Rental Expense

$33,331
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$34,858

$34,917

Future commitments under operating and capital leases are as summarized:
Operating
leases

Capital
leases

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
Thereafter

$23,257
17,784
10,316
6,191
3,733
4,044

$1,186
407
147
47
—
—

Total minimum obligation
Interest component of obligation

$65,325
—

$1,787
(191)

Present value of minimum obligation

$65,325

$1,596

(in thousands)

The Company maintains credit facilities with two banks that allow it to borrow up to $70.0 million on an
unsecured basis at the bank’s prime rate of interest or the indexed London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) under which $38.3 million in Letters of Credit were outstanding at December 31, 2007. No
borrowings were outstanding under this credit facility as of December 31, 2007 or 2006.
Orkin, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, is a named defendant in Mark and Christine Butland et al. v.
Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. et al. pending in the Circuit Court of Hillsborough County, Tampa,
Florida. The plaintiffs filed suit in March of 1999 and are seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief.
The Court ruled in early April 2002, certifying the class action lawsuit against Orkin. Orkin appealed this
ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeals, which remanded the case back to the trial court for
further findings. In December 2004 the Court issued a new ruling certifying the class action. Orkin
appealed this new ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeals. In June 2006, the Florida Second
District Court of Appeals issued a ruling denying certification of the class. Following the Plaintiffs’ motion
for rehearing, the court upheld its prior decision that class certification was improper but also ruled that
the Plaintiffs can return to the trial court and attempt to certify a narrower class. Orkin will vigorously
oppose any effort by the Plaintiffs to do so. Orkin believes this case to be without merit and intends to
defend itself vigorously through trial, if necessary. At this time, the final outcome of the litigation cannot
be determined. The Company does not believe that any pending claim, proceeding or litigation, either
alone or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position; however,
it is possible that an unfavorable outcome of some or all of the matters, however unlikely, could result in a
charge that might be material to the results of an individual quarter.
Additionally, in the normal course of business, Orkin is a defendant in a number of lawsuits or arbitrations,
which allege that plaintiffs have been damaged as a result of the rendering of services by Orkin. Orkin is
actively contesting these actions. Some lawsuits have been filed (Ernest W. Warren and Dolores G. Warren et
al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc., et al.; John Maciel v. Orkin, Inc., et al.; Ronald and Ileana
Krzyzanowsky et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc.; Adam Stauber v. Rollins, Inc. et
al.; and Roy Sheppard et al. v. Orkin Exterminating Company, Inc. and Rollins, Inc.) in which the Plaintiffs
are seeking certification of a class. The cases originate in Georgia, California, and Arkansas, respectively.
In Warren, the Superior Court of Cobb County, Marietta, Georgia, ruled in August 2006, certifying the
class action against Orkin. Orkin appealed this ruling to the Georgia Court of Appeals, which in November
2007 denied certification of the class. Plaintiff appealed this ruling to the Supreme Court of Georgia, which
in February 2008 denied Plaintiff’s petition for review. The Maciel lawsuit, a wage and hour related matter,
was filed in the Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California and has not been scheduled for a class
certification hearing. The Krzyzanowsky lawsuit, a termite service related matter, was filed in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of California and has not been scheduled for a class
certification hearing. The Stauber lawsuit, a Fair Debt Collection Practices Act related matter, was filed in
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the United States District Court for the Central District of California and a date has not been scheduled
for a hearing on class certification. The Sheppard lawsuit, a termite related matter, was recently filed in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas and a date has not been scheduled for a
hearing on class certification. The Company believes these matters to be without merit and intends to
vigorously contest certification and defend itself through trial or arbitration, if necessary. The Company
does not believe that any pending claim, proceeding or litigation, either alone or in the aggregate, will have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position; however, it is possible that an unfavorable
outcome of some or all of the matters, however unlikely, could result in a charge that might be material to
the results of an individual quarter.
Orkin is involved in certain environmental matters primarily arising in the normal course of business. In
the opinion of management, the Company’s liability under any of these matters would not and did not
materially affect its financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
9.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Benefit Pension Plan
The Company maintains a noncontributory tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan (the ‘‘Plan’’)
covering employees meeting certain age and service requirements. The Plan provides benefits based on the
average compensation for the highest five years during the last ten years of credited service (as defined) in
which compensation was received, and the average anticipated Social Security covered earnings. The
Company funds the Plan with at least the minimum amount required by ERISA. The Company made
contributions of $5.0 million to the Plan during each of the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted amendments to the Plan including a change to the benefit
calculation and limiting plan participation to current participants. These amendments are reflected in
benefit obligations below.
In June 2005, the Company recorded a $4.2 million non-cash curtailment gain in accordance with SFAS
No. 88, ‘‘Employer’s Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and
for Termination Benefits’’, (‘‘SFAS No. 88’’) in connection with freezing our defined benefit pension plan,
using actuarial assumptions consistent with those used at December 31, 2004. SFAS No. 88 requires
curtailment accounting if an event eliminates, for a significant number of employees, the accrual of defined
benefits for some or all of their future services. In the event of a curtailment, an adjustment must be
recognized for the unrecognized prior service cost associated with years of service no longer expected to be
rendered.
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The Company currently uses December 31 as the measurement date for its defined benefit post-retirement
plans. The funded status of the Plan and the net amount recognized in the statement of financial position
are summarized as follows as of:
December 31,
2007
2006

(in thousands)
Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year

$ 147,711

$ 153,598

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid

$ 153,598 $ 153,027
8,628
8,139
(9,059)
(2,562)
(5,456)
(5,006)

Benefit obligation at end of year

$ 147,711

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS
Market value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contribution
Benefits paid

$ 146,652 $ 132,376
18,139
14,282
5,000
5,000
(5,456)
(5,006)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$ 164,335

Funded status

$

$ 153,598

$ 146,652

16,624

(6,946)

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position consist of:
December 31,
(in thousands)

2007

Noncurrent assets
Noncurrent liabilities

2006

$ 16,624
—

$

—
(6,946)

$ 16,624

$ (6,946)

Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income consists of:
December 31,
(in thousands)
Net loss

2007

2006

$16,425

$36,283

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $147.7 million and
$153.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. (Increases) decreases in the pension liability
which were (charged, net of tax) credited to other comprehensive income (loss) were $19.9 million,
9.7 million and ($13.8) million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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The following weighted-average assumptions as of December 31 were used to determine the projected
benefit obligation and net benefit cost:
December 31,
2007

2006

2005

PROJECTED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

6.25% 5.50% 5.50%
N/A
N/A
N/A

NET BENEFIT COST
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

5.50% 5.50% 5.75%
8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
N/A
N/A
3.50%

The return on plan assets reflects the weighted-average of the expected long-term rates of return for the
broad categories of investments held in the plan. The expected long-term rate of return is adjusted when
there are fundamental changes in the expected returns on the plan investments.
The discount rate reflects the current rate at which the pension liabilities could be effectively settled at the
end of the year. In estimating this rate, for fiscal year 2007 the Company utilized a yield curve analysis.
During fiscal 2006, the Company used Moody’s Aa long-term corporate bond yield with yield adjustments
made for longer duration of the Company’s obligation. A lower discount rate increases the present value of
benefit obligations.
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost and Other
Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Pension Benefits
(in thousands)

2007

Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of net loss

$

Net periodic benefit cost
Curtailment Gain

—
8,628
(11,234)
—
3,894

2006
$

— $ 2,794
8,139
8,367
(10,733)
(9,864)
—
(434)
3,563
4,552

1,288
—

969
—

Net Periodic Benefit Cost
After Curtailments and Settlements

$

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Net gain
Amortization of net loss

$ (15,964)
(3,894)

$ (6,111)
(3,563)

(19,858)

(9,674)

$ (18,570)

$ (8,705)

Total recognized in other comprehensive income
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other
comprehensive income

1,288

2005

$

969

5,415
(4,176)
$ 1,239

The estimated net loss that will be amortized in 2008 is expected to be $3.7 million. At December 31, 2007
and 2006, the Plan’s assets were comprised of listed common stocks and U.S. government and corporate
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securities. Included in the assets of the Plan were shares of Rollins, Inc. Common Stock with a market
value of $19.6 million and $15.1 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The Plan’s weighted average asset allocation at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 by asset category, along
with the target allocation for 2008, are as follows:
Target
allocations for
2008

Asset category
Equity Securities – Rollins stock
Equity Securities – all other
Debt Securities – core fixed income
Tactical-Fund of Equity & Debt
Securities
Real Estate
Other
Total

Percentage of plan assets as of
December 31,
2007
2006

10.0%
38.0%
8.0%

11.9%
34.5%
23.9%

10.3%
44.5%
25.6%

7.0%
10.0%
27.0%

4.6%
5.0%
20.1%

4.8%
4.9%
9.9%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

Our investment strategy for our pension plan is to maximize the long-term rate of return on plan assets
within an acceptable level of risk in order to minimize the cost of providing pension benefits. The
investment policy establishes a target allocation for each asset class, which is rebalanced as required. The
plan utilizes a number of investment approaches, including individual market securities, equity and fixed
income funds in which the underlying securities are marketable, and debt funds to achieve this target
allocation. The Company estimates that it will not contribute to the pension plan in 2008 and does not
expect to receive a refund in 2008. The estimated future benefit payments over the next ten years are as
follows:
(in thousands)
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
Thereafter

$

6,127
6,595
7,101
7,655
8,314
49,628

Total estimated benefits payments

$ 85,420

Deferred Compensation 401(k) Plan
The Company sponsors a defined compensation 401(k) Plan that is available to substantially all full-time
employees the first of the calendar quarter following completion of three months of service. The Plan is
available to non full-time employees the first day of the calendar quarter following one year of service
upon completion of 1,000 hours in that year. The Plan provides for a matching contribution of fifty cents
($.50) for each one dollar ($1.00) of a participant’s contributions to the Plan that do not exceed 6 percent
of his or her eligible compensation (which includes commissions, overtime and bonuses). The charge to
expense for the Company match was approximately $5.1 million in 2007, $4.3 million in 2006 and
$3.9 million in 2005. At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 approximately, 30.5%, 30.1% and 29.8%,
respectively of the plan assets consisted of Rollins, Inc. Common Stock. Total administrative fees for the
Plan were approximately $124 thousand in 2007, $159 thousand in 2006 and $240 thousand in 2005.
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Stock Compensation Plans
All share and per share data has been adjusted for the three-for-two stock split effective December 10,
2007.
Stock options and time lapse restricted shares (TLRSs) have been issued to officers and other
management employees under the Company’s Employee Stock Incentive Plan. The Company’s stock
options generally vest over a five-year period and expire ten years from the issuance date.
TLRSs provide for the issuance of a share of the Company’s Common Stock at no cost to the holder and
generally vest after a certain stipulated number of years from the grant date, depending on the terms of the
issue. The Company issued TLRSs that vest over ten years prior to 2004. TLRSs issued 2004 and later vest
in 20 percent increments starting with the second anniversary of the grant, over six years from the date of
grant. During these years, grantees receive all dividends declared and retain voting rights for the granted
shares. The agreements under which the restricted stock is issued provide that shares awarded may not be
sold or otherwise transferred until restrictions established under the plans have lapsed.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company issued approximately 1.6 million shares of common
stock upon exercise of stock options by employees. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company
issued approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock upon exercise of stock options by employees.
The Company issued 0.4 million time lapse restricted shares for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006.
The Company issues new shares from its authorized but unissued share pool. At December 31, 2007,
approximately 6.1 million shares of the Company’s common stock were reserved for issuance. Effective
January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R, which requires the Company to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for all equity awards granted including stock options and TLRSs
based on the fair market value of the award as of the grant date. SFAS 123R supersedes Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ and Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees’’ (‘‘APB 25’’). The Company
has adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective application method of adoption which requires the
Company to record compensation cost related to unvested stock awards as of December 31, 2005 by
recognizing the unamortized grant date fair value of these awards over the remaining service periods of
those awards with no change in historical reported earnings. Awards granted after December 31, 2005 are
valued at fair value in accordance with provisions of SFAS 123R and recognized on a straight line basis
over the service periods of each award. The Company estimated forfeiture rates for 2007 and 2006 based
on its historical experience.
Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance with APB 25 using the
intrinsic value method, which did not require that compensation cost be recognized for the Company’s
stock options provided the option exercise price was established at 100% of the common stock fair market
value on the date of grant. Under APB 25, the Company was required to record expense over the vesting
period for the fair value of TLRSs granted. Prior to 2006, the Company provided pro forma disclosure, as
if the fair value method defined by SFAS No. 123 had been applied to its stock-based compensation. The
Company’s net income and net income per share for the year ended December 31, 2005 would have been
reduced if compensation cost related to stock options had been recorded in the financial statements based
on fair value at the grant dates.
In order to estimate the fair value of stock options, the Company used the Black-Scholes option valuation
model, which was developed for use in estimating the fair value of publicly traded options which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions and these assumptions can vary over time.
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The Company’s only remaining options outstanding at December 31, 2007 for SFAS 123R purposes are the
grants issued during the first quarter of 2003. The Company did not grant any stock options in any years
following the 2003 grant; therefore no Black-Scholes calculation was necessary.
As a result of adopting SFAS 123R, the impact to the Consolidated Financial Statements for Net Income
for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $0.3 million (net of $0.2 million tax benefit) lower, than if the
Company had continued to account for stock—based compensation under APB 25. There was no impact
to both basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2006.
The following pro forma net income and earnings per share (or ‘‘EPS’’) for 2005 was determined as if the
Company had accounted for employee stock options and stock issued under its employee stock plans using
the fair value method prescribed by SFAS 123. As reported numbers for 2007 and 2006 are presented for
comparative purposes only.
Twelve months ended December 31,
(in thousands except per share data)
Net income as reported

2007
as reported

2006
as reported

2005
pro-forma

$ 64,731

$ 57,809

$ 52,773

Add: Stock-based compensation programs recorded as
expense, net of tax
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense,
net of tax

739
(1,423)

Pro forma net income

$ 52,089

Earnings per share:
Basic income per common share

$

0.65

$

0.57

$

0.52

0.64

$

0.56

$

0.51

Pro forma basic income per common share

$

0.51

Pro forma diluted income per common shares

$

0.50

Diluted income per common shares

63

The following table summarizes the components of the Company’s stock-based compensation programs
recorded as expense ($ in thousands):
Twelve months ended
December 31,
2007

2006

2005

Time Lapse Restricted Stock:
Pre-tax compensation expense
Tax benefit

$ 2,841 $ 2,075 $ 1,244
(1,088)
(804)
(505)

Restricted stock expense, net of tax

$ 1,753

Stock options:
Pre-tax compensation expense
Tax benefit

$

Stock option expense, net of tax

$

Total Share-Based Compensation:
Pre-tax compensation expense
Tax benefit

$ 3,189 $ 2,987 $ 1,244
(1,221)
(1,157)
(505)

Total share-based compensation expense, net of tax

$ 1,968

$ 1,271

348 $
(133)
215

$ 739

912 $
(353)

$

559

$ 1,830

$

—
—
—

$ 739

As of December 31, 2007, $11.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to time lapse
restricted shares is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 4.5 years
for TLRSs.
Option activity under the Company’s stock option plan as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and
changes during the year ended December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term
(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2004
Exercised
Forfeited

5,636
(1,755)
(71)

$

5.97
5.49
7.13

4.96

$32,262

Outstanding at December 31, 2005
Exercised
Forfeited

3,809
(1,032)
(101)

$

6.16
5.93
6.21

3.98

$26,574

Outstanding at December 31, 2006
Exercised
Forfeited

2,676
(1,646)
(40)

$

6.25
5.93
7.07

4.39

$22,715

Outstanding at December 31, 2007

990

$

6.75

3.80

$12,328

Exercisable at December 31, 2007

835

$

6.46

3.56

$10,634

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference
between the Company’s closing stock price on the last trading day of 2007 and the exercise price,
multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have been received by the option holders

64

had all option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2007. The amount of aggregate intrinsic
value will change based on the fair market value of the Company’s stock.
The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 was $15.1 million and $8.1 million, respectively. Exercise of options during the year
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 resulted in cash receipts of $1.4 million and $1.1 million, respectively.
The following table summarizes information on unvested restricted stock units outstanding as of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:
Number of
Shares
(in thousands)

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

Unvested Restricted Stock Grants
Unvested as of December 31, 2004
Forfeited
Vested
Granted

401
(17)
(6)
338

$10.66
10.05
6.76
10.96

Unvested as of December 31, 2005
Forfeited
Vested
Granted

716
(23)
(83)
444

$11.12
11.23
10.34
14.11

Unvested as of December 31, 2006
Forfeited
Vested
Granted

1,055
(31)
(174)
353

$12.17
12.91
10.01
14.11

Unvested as of December 31, 2007

1,203

$13.02
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10. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) consist of the following (in thousands):
Pension
Liability
Adjustment

Foreign
Currency
Translation

Other
Unrealized
Gain/(Loss)

Total

$ (18,355)

$ 2,161

$ 128

$ (16,066)

(13,833)
5,652

1,114
—

—
(131)

(12,719)
5,521

(8,181)

1,114

(131)

(7,198)

(26,536)

3,275

(3)

(23,264)

Balance at December 31, 2004
Change during 2005:
Before-tax amount
Tax benefit (expense)
Balance at December 31, 2005
Change during 2006:
Before-tax amount
Tax benefit (expense)
Balance at December 31, 2006
Change during 2007:
Before-tax amount
Tax benefit (expense)
Balance at December 31, 2007

9,674
(3,957)

169
(406)

—
—

9,843
(4,363)

5,717

(237)

—

5,480

(20,819)

3,038

(3)

(17,784)

19,858
(8,829)

4,571
(1,869)

3
—

24,432
(10,698)

11,029

2,702

3

13,734

$ (9,790)

$ 5,740

$

—

$ (4,050)

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company provides certain administrative services and rents office space to RPC, Inc. (‘‘RPC’’) (a
company of which Mr. R. Randall Rollins is also Chairman and which is otherwise affiliated with the
Company). The service agreements between RPC and the Company provide for the provision of services
on a cost reimbursement basis and are terminable on six months notice. The services covered by these
agreements include office space, administration of certain employee benefit programs, and other
administrative services. Charges to RPC (or to corporations which are subsidiaries of RPC) for such
services and rent totaled to less than $0.1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005.
The Company rents office, hanger and storage space to LOR, Inc. (‘‘LOR’’) (a company controlled by
R. Randall Rollins and Gary W. Rollins). Charges to LOR (or corporations which are subsidiaries of LOR)
for rent totaled $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2005 and $0.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006.
The Company renovated its executive offices in 2007. R. Randall Rollins was reimbursed $0.3 million for
amounts advanced by him for costs of the renovation. Of that amount, $0.1 million was paid to Tim
Rollins, the son of R. Randall Rollins, who managed the services for completion of the renovation after
several failed attempts by other vendors. RFA Management (a company owned by LOR) was reimbursed
less than $10 thousand for costs of the renovation. All transactions were approved by the Company’s
Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors.
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12. UNAUDITED QUARTERLY DATA
All earnings per share data for the quarters have been restated for the three-for-two stock split effective
December 10, 2007.
(in thousands except per share data)
2007
Revenues
Gross Profit (Revenues – Cost of Services Provided)
Net Income
Income per Share:
Income per Share – Basic
Income per Share – Diluted
2006
Revenues
Gross Profit (Revenues–Cost of Services Provided)
Net Income
Income per Share:
Income per Share – Basic
Income per Share – Diluted

First

Second

Third

Fourth

$ 201,232
94,396
12,793

$ 239,618
118,017
21,239

$ 238,116
115,087
18,765

$ 215,954
98,755
11,934

0.13
0.13

0.21
0.21

0.19
0.19

0.12
0.12

$ 194,187
87,173
10,903

$ 232,222
113,187
19,330

$ 227,816
108,610
17,037

$ 204,653
92,039
10,539

0.11
0.10

0.19
0.19

0.17
0.17

0.10
0.10

13. CASH DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors, at its quarterly meeting on January 22, 2008, approved a 25% increase in the
Company’s quarterly dividend. The increased regular quarterly dividend of $0.0625 per share will be
payable March 10, 2008 to stockholders of record at the close of business February 8, 2008. The Company’s
new annual dividend rate is $0.25 per share.
14. ACQUISITIONS
On October 1, 2005, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of
the Industrial Fumigant Company (‘‘IFC’’) for $23.5 million in cash. The Company’s consolidated
statements of income include the results of operations of IFC for all periods after October 1, 2005. As a
result of the acquisition, the Company recorded $11.5 million in goodwill and $7.8 million in identifiable
intangibles, primarily customer contracts.
Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures.

None
Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures—We have established disclosure controls and procedures to
ensure, among other things, that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to the officers who certify the Company’s financial reports and to other
members of senior management and the Board of Directors.
Based on management’s evaluation as of December 31, 2007, in which the principal executive officer and
principal financial officer of the Company participated, the principal executive officer and principal
financial officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective, at the reasonable
assurance level to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that
it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting—Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting is contained on page 80.
Changes in Internal Controls—There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during
the fourth quarter of 2007 that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect these
controls.
PART III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Information concerning directors and executive officers is included in the Company’s Proxy Statement for
its 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the ‘‘Proxy Statement’’), in the section titled ‘‘Election of
Directors’’. This information is incorporated herein by reference. Information about executive officers is
contained on page 22 of this document.
Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert
Information concerning the Audit Committee of the Company and the Audit Committee Financial
Expert(s) is included in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, in
the section titled ‘‘Corporate Governance and Board of Directors’ Committees and Meetings—Audit
Committee.’’ This information is incorporated herein by reference.
Code of Ethics
The Company has adopted a code of Business Conduct that applies to all employees. In addition, the
Company has adopted a Supplemental Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for directors, the Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer. Both of these documents are available
on the Company’s website at www.rollins.com and a copy is available by writing to Investor Relations at
2170 Piedmont Road, Atlanta Georgia 30324. The Company intends to satisfy the disclosure requirement
under Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of its code of ethics
that relates to any elements of the code of ethics definition enumerated in SEC rules by posting such
information on its internet website, the address of which is provided above.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is included under ‘‘Compliance
with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act’’ in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11.

Executive Compensation.

The information under the captions ‘‘Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,’’
‘‘Director Compensation,’’ ‘‘Compensation Discussion and Analysis,’’ ‘‘Compensation Committee
Report,’’ and ‘‘Executive Compensation’’ included in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held April 22, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information under the captions ‘‘Capital Stock’’, ‘‘Election of Directors’’ and ‘‘Equity Compensation
Plan Information’’ included in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held
April 22, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth certain information regarding equity compensation plans as of December 31,
2007.

Number of Securities To
Be Issued Upon Exercise
of Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(A)

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(B)

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (A))
(C)

Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders

2,192,867

$6.75

485,360

Total

2,192,867

$6.75

485,360(1)

Plan Category

(1) Includes 485,360 shares available for grant under the 1998 Employee Stock Incentive Plan. The 1998
Employee Stock Incentive Plan provides for awards of the Company’s common stock and awards that
are valued in whole or in part by reference to the Company’s common stock apart from stock options
and SARs including, without limitation, restricted stock, performance-accelerated restricted stock,
performance stock, performance units, and stock awards or options valued by reference to book value
or subsidiary performance.
Item 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information under the caption ‘‘Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions’’ included in the
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. Information concerning director independence is
included in the Proxy Statement, in the section titled ‘‘Corporate Governance and Board of Directors’
Committees and Meetings.’’ This information is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 14.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information regarding principal accounting fees and services is set forth under ‘‘Principal Accounting Fees
and Services’’ in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which
information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) Consolidated Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedule and Exhibits.
1.

Consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying Index to Consolidated
Financial Statements and Schedule are filed as part of this report.

2.

The financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial
Statements and Schedule is filed as part of this report.

3.

Exhibits listed in the accompanying Index to Exhibits are filed as part of this report. The
following such exhibits are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements:
(10)(a)

Rollins, Inc. 1994 Employee Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(b) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999.

(10)(b)

Rollins, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit A of the March 24, 1998 Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders held on April 28, 1998.

(10)(c)

Rollins, Inc. Form of Restricted Stock Agreement incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(c) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

(10)(d)

Rollins, Inc. Form of Option Agreement incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(d) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(10)(f)

Written Description of Rollins, Inc. Performance-Based Incentive Cash
Compensation Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(f) as filed
with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(10)(l)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 24, 2006
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(l) as filed with its Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(m)

Rollins, Inc. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with the registrant’s Form S-8 filed
November 18, 2005.

(10)(n)

Form of Plan Agreement pursuant to the Rollins, Inc. Amended and Restated
Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2
filed with the registrant’s Form S-8 filed November 18, 2005.

(10)(o)

Form A of Executive Bonus Plan incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(o) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(p)

Form B of Executive Bonus Plan incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(p) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(q)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 23, 2007
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(q) as filed with its Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10)(r)

Amendment to 1994 and 1998 Stock Incentive Plans incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(r) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

70

(10)(s)

Summary of Rollins, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Compensation as of
January 23, 2007 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(s) as filed with its
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10)(t)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 22, 2008.

(10)(u)

Summary of Rollins, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Compensation as of
January 22, 2008.

(b) Exhibits (inclusive of item 3 above):
(2)(a)

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Orkin, Inc. and Western
Industries, Inc., Western Exterminating Company, Inc. et al. dated March 8, 2004
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (2)(i) as filed with its Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2004, as amended. *

(3)(i)

(A) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Rollins, Inc. dated July 28, 1981,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3)(i)(A) as filed with the registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed August 1, 2005.
(B) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Rollins, Inc.
dated August 20, 1987, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(B) filed
with the registrant’s 10-K filed March 11, 2005.
(C) Certificate of Change of Location of Registered Office and of Registered
Agent dated March 22, 1994, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (3)(i)(C) filed with the registrant’s Form 10-Q filed August 1, 2005.
(D) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Rollins, Inc.
dated April 25, 2006, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(D) filed
with the registrant’s 10-Q filed October 31, 2006.

(ii)

Revised By-laws of Rollins, Inc. dated October 23, 2007, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (3)(i) as filed with its Form 8-K dated October 23, 2007.

(4)

Form of Common Stock Certificate of Rollins, Inc. incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (4) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998.

(10)(a)

Rollins, Inc. 1994 Employee Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(b) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999.

(10)(b)

Rollins, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit A of the March 24, 1998 Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders held on April 28, 1998.

(10)(c)

Rollins, Inc. Form of Restricted Stock Agreement incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(c) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

(10)(d)

Rollins, Inc. Form of Option Agreement incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(d) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(10)(f)

Written Description of Rollins, Inc. Performance-Based Incentive Cash
Compensation Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(f) as filed
with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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(10)(j)

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among Rollins Continental, Inc. et al. dated
April 28, 2004 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (2)(ii) as filed with its
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004.

(10)(k)

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among Rollins Continental, Inc. et al. dated
December 20, 2004 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(k) as filed
with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(10)(l)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 24, 2006
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(l) as filed with its Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(m)

Rollins, Inc. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with the registrant’s Form S-8 filed
November 18, 2005.

(10)(n)

Form of Plan Agreement pursuant to the Rollins, Inc. Amended and Restated
Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2
filed with the registrant’s Form S-8 filed November 18, 2005.

(10)(o)

Form A of Executive Bonus Plan incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(o) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(p)

Form B of Executive Bonus Plan incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(p) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(q)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 23, 2007
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(q) as filed with its Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10)(r)

Amendment to 1994 and 1998 Stock Incentive Plans incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(r) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

(10)(s)

Summary of Rollins, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Compensation as of
January 23, 2007 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(s) as filed with its
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10)(t)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 22, 2008.

(10)(u)

Summary of Rollins, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Compensation as of
January 22, 2008.

(21)
(23.1)
(24)

Subsidiaries of Registrant.
Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm.
Powers of Attorney for Directors.

(31.1)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of
Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

(31.2)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of
Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.
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(32.1)

*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Confidential treatment, pursuant to 17 C.F.R. Sections 200.80 and 230.406, has been granted
regarding certain portions of the indicated Exhibit, which portions have been filed separately with the
Commission.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
ROLLINS, INC.
By:

/s/ GARY W. ROLLINS

Gary W. Rollins
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief
Operating Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: February 29, 2008
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
By:

/s/ GARY W. ROLLINS

By:

Gary W. Rollins
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief
Operating Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: February 29, 2008

/s/ HARRY J. CYNKUS
Harry J. Cynkus
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: February 29, 2008

The Directors of Rollins, Inc. (listed below) executed a power of attorney appointing Gary W. Rollins their
attorney-in-fact, empowering him to sign this report on their behalf.
R. Randall Rollins, Director
Wilton Looney, Director
Henry B. Tippie, Director
James B. Williams, Director
Bill J. Dismuke, Director
Thomas J. Lawley, Director

/s/ GARY W. ROLLINS
Gary W. Rollins
As Attorney-in-Fact & Director
February 29, 2008
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ROLLINS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULE
(Item 16)
Page Number
From
This Form 10-K
(1)

Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2007 and
2006

39

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007

40

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2007

41

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007

42

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2)

43–67

Report of Grant Thornton LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm on the Consolidated Financial Statements

79

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

80

Report of Grant Thornton LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

81

Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule II – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Schedules not listed above have been omitted as not applicable, immaterial or
disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

75

76

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
ROLLINS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in thousands)

For the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Balance at
Charged to
Net
Beginning of Costs and
(Deductions)
Period
Expenses
Recoveries(1)

Balance at
End of
Period

Year ended December 31, 2007
Allowance for doubtful accounts

$ 7,228

$ 5,915

$ (6,475)

$ 6,668

Year ended December 31, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts

$ 5,615

$ 7,195

$ (5,582)

$ 7,228

Year ended December 31, 2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts

$ 5,108

$ 5,796

$ (5,289)

$ 5,615

(1) Net deductions represent the write-off of uncollectible receivables, net of recoveries and transfer in of
reserves from the Industrial Fumigant Company acquisition.
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ROLLINS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

(2)(a)

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Orkin, Inc. and Western Industries, Inc., Western
Exterminating Company, Inc. et al. dated March 8, 2004 incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (2) (i) as filed with its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004, as amended.*

(3)(i)

(A) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Rollins, Inc. dated July 28, 1981, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit (3)(i)(A) as filed with the registrant’s Form 10-Q filed August 1,
2005.
(B) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Rollins, Inc. dated August 20,
1987, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(B) filed with the registrant’s 10-K filed
March 11, 2005.
(C) Certificate of Change of Location of Registered Office and of Registered Agent dated
March 22, 1994, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3)(i)(C) filed with the registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed August 1, 2005.
(D) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Rollins, Inc. dated April 25,
2006, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(D) filed with the registrant’s 10-Q filed
October 31, 2006

(ii)

Revised By-laws of Rollins, Inc. dated October 23, 2007, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (3) (i) as filed with its Form 8-K dated October 23, 2007.

(4)

Form of Common Stock Certificate of Rollins, Inc. incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (4) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998.

(10)(a)

Rollins, Inc. 1994 Employee Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(b) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.

(10)(b)

Rollins, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A
of the March 24, 1998 Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on April 28,
1998.

(10)(c)

Rollins, Inc. Form of Restricted Stock Agreement incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(c) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(10)(d)

Rollins, Inc. Form of Option Agreement incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(d) as
filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(10)(f)

Written Description of Rollins, Inc. Performance-Based Incentive Cash Compensation Plan
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(f) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

(10)(j)

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among Rollins Continental, Inc. et al. dated April 28, 2004
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (2) (ii) as filed with its Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004.

(10)(k)

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among Rollins Continental, Inc. et al. dated December 20,
2004 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(k) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

(10)(l)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 24, 2006 incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(l) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

(10)(m) Rollins, Inc. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with the registrant’s Form S-8 filed November 18, 2005.
(10)(n)

Form of Plan Agreement pursuant to the Rollins, Inc. Amended and Restated Deferred
Compensation Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 filed with the registrant’s
Form S-8 filed November 18, 2005.

(10)(o)

Form A of Executive Bonus Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(o) as filed
with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(p)

Form B of Executive Bonus Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(p) as filed with
its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(10)(q)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 23, 2007 incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(q) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006

(10)(r)

Amendment to 1994 and 1998 Stock Incentive Plans incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(r) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10)(s)

Summary of Rollins, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Compensation as of January 23, 2007
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(s) as filed with its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

(10)(t)

Rollins, Inc. Executive Compensation Summary as of January 22, 2008.

(10)(u)

Summary of Rollins, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Compensation as of January 22, 2008.

(21)

Subsidiaries of Registrant.

(23.1)

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

(24)

Powers of Attorney for Directors.

(31.1)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(31.2)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(32.1)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*

Confidential treatment, pursuant to 17 C.F.R. Sections 200.80 and 230.406, has been granted
regarding certain portions of the indicated Exhibit, which portions have been filed separately with the
Commission.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Rollins, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Rollins, Inc. (a
Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2007. Our audits of the basic consolidated financial statements included
the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15. These financial statements
and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based
on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘‘FASB’’) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 in 2007 and adopted the recognition
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R)’’ and the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004),
‘‘Share-Based Payment’’ in 2006.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated
February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
February 29, 2008
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
To the Stockholders of Rollins, Inc.:
The management of Rollins, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting for the Company. Rollins, Inc. maintains a system of internal accounting controls
designed to provide reasonable assurance, at a reasonable cost, that assets are safeguarded against loss or
unauthorized use and that the financial records are adequate and can be relied upon to produce financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The internal control system is augmented by written policies and procedures, an internal audit program
and the selection and training of qualified personnel. This system includes policies that require adherence
to ethical business standards and compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of internal controls over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2007 based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management’s assessment is that
Rollins, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007.
The independent registered public accounting firm, Grant Thornton LLP has audited the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, and has also issued their report on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, included in this report on
page 81.
/s/ GARY W. ROLLINS

/s/ HARRY J. CYNKUS

Gary W. Rollins
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chief Operating Officer

Harry J. Cynkus
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Atlanta, Georgia
February 29, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Rollins, Inc.
We have audited Rollins, Inc.’s (a Delaware Corporation) and subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Rollins, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by COSO.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated statements of financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholder’s equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 and our report dated
February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
February 29, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1
I, Gary W. Rollins, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rollins, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2008

/s/ GARY W. ROLLINS
Gary W. Rollins, Chief Executive Officer, President
and Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
I, Harry J. Cynkus, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rollins, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2008

/s/ HARRY J. CYNKUS
Harry J. Cynkus, Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Rollins, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the ‘‘Company’’), on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on the date hereof (the ‘‘Report’’), each of the undersigned certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. sec. 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: February 29, 2008

By: /s/ GARY W. ROLLINS
Gary W. Rollins, Chief Executive Officer,
President and Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 29, 2008

By: /s/ HARRY J. CYNKUS
Harry J. Cynkus, Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

This certification shall not be deemed ‘‘filed’’ for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the ‘‘Exchange Act’’), or incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in
such a filing.
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Additional Annual Report Stockholder’s Information
(This is not a part of the Company’s Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission)
Certifications
The most recent certifications by the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as exhibits to the Company’s Form 10-K,
included with this annual report. The Company has also filed with the New York Stock Exchange the most
recent annual CEO certification, without qualification, as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York
Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual.
CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This annual report contains statements that constitute ‘‘forward-looking statements’’ within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including all statements that look forward in time or
express management’s beliefs, expectations or hopes. In particular, such statements include, without
limitation, statements regarding our plan to explore new non-pesticide technologies and expand our
botanical-based product offerings; our belief that our field service force is well-positioned to meet the
challenge of the emerging green market demand; our belief that investments in training and technology
will be key factors in our ability to continue our co-worker and customer retention; our expectation that
internet leads and sales will continue to outpace those from traditional advertising channels; our belief that
ORION will help us generate optimal travel routes, better enabling same-day service scheduling and
ensuring that our customers’ preferences and availability requirements are met consistently; our belief that
ORION will provide our employees with the most efficient service routes and thereby be able to spend
more time with their customers and improve their earnings; our belief that ORION field trials will begin
mid-year with rollout beginning in late 2008; our plan to use PowerTrack to serve more of our large, multilocation customers in the coming year; our belief that the Kronos system is expected to be installed
Company-wide in 2008; and our plan to expand our initiative featuring educational information about
pests and rodents in the home into an interactive page on Orkin’s Web site in 2008. All forward-looking
statements are made as of the date hereof and are based on current management expectations and
information available to it as of such date. The Company assumes no obligation to update any forwardlooking statement. The actual results of the Company could differ materially from those indicated by the
forward-looking statements because of various risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation, the
possibility of an adverse ruling against the Company in pending litigation; general economic conditions;
market risk; changes in industry practices or technologies; the degree of success of the Company’s pest and
termite process reforms and pest control selling and treatment methods; the Company’s ability to identify
potential acquisitions and to integrate acquired companies; climate and weather trends; competitive
factors and pricing practices; potential increases in labor costs; changes in various government laws and
regulations, including environmental regulations; and all other risks identified under the title ‘‘Risk
Factors’’ in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K included as a part of this Annual Report. All of
the foregoing risks and uncertainties are beyond the ability of the Company to control, and in many cases
the Company cannot predict the risks and uncertainties that could cause its actual results to differ
materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements.
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ROLLINS, INC. EXECUTIVE STEERING COMMITTEE

From Left to Right: Kevin Smith, Tom Porter, Bill Newton, Gary W. Rollins, Glen Rollins, Gary Rowell,
Mike Knottek and Harry Cynkus.

ORKIN PRESIDENT AND DIVISIONAL VICE PRESIDENTS

From Left to Right: John Wilson, Glen Rollins, Gary Rowell, Gene Iarocci, Harry Sargent,
Tom Walters, Robert Stevens and Gary Muldoon.
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ROLLINS INC.
2170 Piedmont Road, NE
Atlanta, GA 30324

www.orkin.com • www.westernpest.com • www.indfumco.com • www.rollins.com

